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Partial List Of Victims, Municipality

Of Taal, Batangas, P, I.




RECORD OF DEATHS AND HOUSES BURNED BY
JAPANESE = PROVINCE OF BATANGAS

0ol

Municipality of T A A L = Deaths

HAMES BARRBRIO

Florentina Almandral
Maria Galba
Maria Barairo
Arcadia Anciado
Andres Tenorio
Francisco Temoirio
Maria de Ramos
Lucrecia Barairo
Gregoria Baraire
Issbelo Somana
Angel Ramos

Jose Barrion
Olimpia Reyes
Conchita Barrion
Benedicto Barrion
Crispina Agodera
Natalia Caibigan
Gregoria Mendoza
Maria Atdénza
Gavino Atienza
Asuncica Atienza
Ricardo Atienza
Benita Atienczs
Santiago Atienza
Leonora Badillo
Pedro Atienza
Vicente Atienza
Moises Almagan
Marcelina Punzalan
Roman Almazen
Norberto Almazan
Claro Almazan
Engracia Atienza
Vicente Atienza
Carmen Atienza
Virginia Cupvillas
Epifania Atienza
Elpidio Atiensa
Ricardo Atienza
Galicano Atienza
Melecia Almszan
Felicidad Mendosa
Clemencia Tenorio
Saturnina Sandoval
Felicimna Bathan
Rosa Bathan
Felisa Cuevillas
Cornelio Atienza
Jogefa Casabuena
Corazom Pungalan
Rosita Atienza
Armando Gonzales
Honorata Atienza
Martin Atienza
Alberto Mertel
Conchita T
Josefinal B stas
Benjamin Moreho
Martin Maligeya
Andrea Briones
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Municipality of T A A L = Deeths ( Cont'd )

S ANES BARRIO _SEX AGE OCCUPATION

61, Pablo Marasignan Butang Farmor

62, Dalmacio de la Luna " Fisherman
Susana Banawa

64. Estemiana Temorio

65, Herodes Tenorio

66, Aurea Diemampo
Crisestoma Tenorio
Gregoria Punzalan
Victoria Tenorio
Donata Tenorio
Andrea Endaya
Rogario Africa
Zoila Africa
Arlinda Africa
Comiteo Africa
Escolastico Suarez
Ventura Alviz
Constancia Bebehis
Clemencia Banawa
Ruperta Gercia
Victoria Lascano
Ruperta Lascano
Lorenza Badillo
Venencia Lescano
Cecilia Lascano
Paula Lascano
Juliana Lascano
Feliciano Banaag
Simeon Banaag
Nicomedes Banaag
Conception Banaag
Rosita Banaag
Sotero Banaeg
Adoracion Banaag
Irinea Bebihis
Eustaquia Banawa
Fortunata Aquino
Concolacion Almazan
Josefa Almazan
Jovita Almazam
Gloria Bebihis
Adey Landicho
Nicaesio Bebihis
Agueda Bebihis
Pepito Almazan
Mamerta Quino
Jovita Banawa
Miguel Mayuge
Sofia Mayuga
Andrea de Sagun
Victoria Barrion
Ignaeia Mayuga
Eleuterio Mayuga
Asuncion Mayuga
Franscisco Mayuga
Trinidaed Mayuga
Meriano Barrion
Marta Barrion
Felisga Barrion
Nicanor Castillo
Josefa Barrion
Carmen Barrion
Normando Castillo
Alberto Cestillo
Silvia Castillo
Bantriz Barrion
Consuelo Tenorio
Lolita Omandap
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Municipality of TA AL = Doalhu ( Cont'd )

NAMES BARRIO SEX AGE OCCUPATION

Vicente Barrion
Catalina Perez
Remedios Barrion
Concordia Berrion
Bienvenido Barrion
Alicia Barrion
Jaime Barrion
Eduardo Barrion
Enrico Barrion
Bonifecio
Josefina
Ramon Atlenza
Corazon Omandas
Losmeio Biscoche
Victoria Biscoche
Exilia Biscoche
Macaris Biscoche
Rosa Divino
Vicenta Divino
Natividad Divino
Leonida Divino
Melchor Bisciche
Aquiline Biscoche
Restitute Biscoche
Amalin Biscoche
Malquiadex Diemamao
Ageseda Diemamao
Murisanite Diemamao
Lina Diemamao
Maria Balba
Bleidio Omandas
Nieves Omandas
Fraetacia Omandas
Gloria Omandas
Aselenio Omandas
Feliciano Omandas
Osmundo Omandas
Maxima Omandas
Martina Memdeza
Modesta Omendas
Fugenia Almendral
Isabel Almendral
Briscio Biscoche
Simplicio Tenorio
Ewiliame Orlamaz
Julian Alviz
Inescencio Tenorio
Candida de Maligalig "
Romulo Dimalig Sinturisan
Petronila Encarnacion Talang
Anaran L]
Vicente Garduce Taube
Isidore Garduce
Mercedes Bathan
Rosalia Caraan
Juan Bathan
Tomesa Azar
Segpndo Gonzales
Anita Arriela
Concepcion Cineto
Segundo Banawa
Florencia Ortiz
Ignacio Alcantera
Domingo Caruno
Brigido Caruno

Merchant
Housekeeper
Teacher
Student
Student
Student
Student
Student
Student
Servant
Servsnt
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Municipality of T A A L = Deeths ( Cont'd)
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NAMES

Anastacia Banawa
Leonardo Banawa
Conrado Banawa
Marciano Banawa
Bonifacia Permen
Rita Banawa

Norma Alcaraz
Margaritsg Lacerna
Melecia Bancoro
Estelita Bancoro
Jacoba Bancoro
Estrella Diomampo
Rodolfo Diomsampo
Maria Landiche
Alfredo Landiche
Marcos Bancoro
Alberto Msrasignan
Mariano Bancoro
Maria Hernandez
Lydia Bancoro
Candida Msrasignan
Robihis de Roxas
Andrea de Roxas
Marcelo de Roxas
Luis Hernandez
Amado Hernandez
Adoracion Hernandez
Francisca Hernandez
Lorenza de Roxas
Lourdes de Roxas
Dorotea Manalo
Leonora Banawa
Rosario Megsino
Isebel Bancoro
Alfredo Magsino
Ofelia Magsino
Felicita Alcantara
Sinforoso de Roxas
Geronima Meporos
Antonia Banawa
Segunda Amoros
Prudencia Endava
Evarista Alcantara
Rosal Landicho
Antonina Gercila
Marcelino Garcia
Crisanto de Poxas
Cesimiro de Roxas
Martin Somana
Emoteria Punzalan
Maria Norma Punzalan
Trinidad de Roxas
Gregoria Landicho

Cultihan

Dressmaker
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Tanner
Tanner
Tenner
Tanner
Housekeeper

Housekeeper
Tanner

Housekeeper
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EXHIBIT 274

RESTRICTED
US.A. vs Tomoyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution
Defense Exhibit No, 279
Received:
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EXHIBIT 275

US.A. vs Tomoyuki YAMASHITA

RESTRICTED Prosecution .
Defense Exhibit No. 275
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EXHIBIT 277
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US.A. vs Tomoyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution

Defease Exhibit No. 277
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Partial List Of Filipino Civilians Killed By The
Japanese = February and March, 1945 - Manicipality of
Cuenca, Province of Batangas, P. 1.

CERIIEICAIE

We certify that the following Exhibit is a true
1ist of victims killed by the Japanese in Cuenca, Batan-
gas, P. I.,.during February and March 1945; that this
list was obtained from the official list of victims pre-
pared by the Municipal Mayor of Cuenca,

‘cum.mé' Co m"‘ouri 'son,; Gapt.%'l‘c 4

l{gﬁ. PEOPLES, Capt.. CAC

US.A. v» Tomoyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution

EXHIBIT A
RESTRICTE D Received: Exhibit No. 274"
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PARTIAL LIST OF FILIPINO CIVILIANS KILLED BY JAPANESE

FEBRUARY AND MARCH, 1945

MUNICIPALITY OF CUENCA, PROVINCE OF BATANGAS

Manuela Jusay
Rosa Magpantaey
Petronila Cuevas
Tomasa Lunar
Victoria Chavesz
Dominga Chaves
Santos Comia
Tiburcio Magbuo
Isidro Magbuo
Felipe Magbuo
Justino Cuevas
MNelchor Magbuo
Basario Magbuo
Apacite Macalintal
Selvina Jeen
Felicisimo Lunar
Felisa Magpantay
Francisco Lunar
Juan Lunar
Vicenta Lunar
Pedro Lunar
Felicided Lunar
Macario Robles
Maria Robles
Vicente Magpantay
Hiladio Magpantay
Elina Robles
Maxima Magpantay
Isaac Magpantay
Isidro Pagdonsulan
Felomina Magpantay
Lauriana Pagdonsulan
Marcelina Pagdonsulan
Irenia Chaves
Primitivg Chaves
Maria Chaves
Irene Chavesz

Jose Villanueva
Severino Santiago
Mariano Pacing
Luecio Matibag
Irineo Malabag
Enilio Laraya
Felipe Malabag
Manuvel Aguila
Eugenio Caragan
Bonifacio Visaya
Domingo Robles
Juan Matibag
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17
90

40
17
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30
31
30
26
32
25
32
35

Housekeeper
Housekeeper
None
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laboere
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Laborer
Housekeeper
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Laborer
Housekeeper
Laborer
None
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
None
Housekeeper
Laborer
None

None
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
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lame

Eleain !'atibag Labac

Toribio Palma "

Emiliano Jopia

Rufino Cuevas

Pedro Cuevhs

Pedro Natibag

Marciano Chavez

Victor Marasigan

l'arciano Danao

Proceso 'agpantuy

Proceso Falma

Antonio Robles

Fermin Wapolon

Benigno Loria

Zusimo Malibiran

Vicente Robles

Emilio Jopia

Maria Alejandre

Romana Bayanin

Victor Robles
Alejandro

Benito Marasigan

Gregorio Castillo

Juan Jardin

Liborio Jordan

Vicente Hernandez

Miguel Jusay

Irinio Garcia "

Leonardo Rin "

Andres Rosales Enmanuel

Alfonso Malabanan L

Paulino Gerao Dalipit

Maximo Jaen "

Leonardo Ren

Alejandro Castillo

Emilio La Rosa

Apolinario La Rosa

Mariano la fogsa

Apolinario Jarina

Manuel Jarina

Andres Cadacio

Arcadio Marasigan

Gaudencio Torres

Mariano Mendoza

Arcadio Torres

Tosibio Remo

Simfroso Robles

Domingo Robles

Santos Torres

Marciano Lopez

Potenciano Calingasan

Agustin Olea

Faustino La Rosa

Rufino Samonte

Dionicio Da Rosa

Quintin Cadacio

Silvino Atienza

Juan Atienza

Pablo Mendoza

Emiliana La Rosa

Bungahan

Street or Bairio

STRICTED

M 28
N 35
M 33
M 35
54,
M 12
M 24
M 55
M
1" 35
" 40
" 27
M 75
¥ 85
A 70
/! 23
55
35
35
24
17
31
52
48
45
50
50
24
45
22
24
64
40
45
40
57
41
31
41
43
34
19
19
49
43
43
46
23
37
55
53
38
24
52
45
25
34
34
35
28
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Occupation

Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Labhorer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
[aborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Sanit. Insp.
Laborer
Radio Mec.
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Teacher
Laborer
Laborer
Ex-Navy Man
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Laborer
Housekeeper

Date

ar,
Mar,
[lar,

Mar, 8

Mar,
ifar,
Mar,
Nar.,
Yarp,
Mar,
Var,
Nar,
ar.
Mar,
£ ar.,
Mar,
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Mar,
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Mar,
dar.,
Mar,
Mar,
Mar.
Mar.,
Mar,
Mar.
Mar,
Mar,
Mar,
Mar.
Har,
Mar,
Mar,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb.
Fﬁb .
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb .
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb.
Feb.
Feb.
P eb .
Mar,
Mar,
Mar,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb.
Feb.

1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
9, 1945
18, 1945
14, 1945
7, 1945
7, 1945
7, 1945
10, 1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
1945
16, 1945
23, 1945
10, 1945
6, 1945
6, 1945
6, 1945
6, 1945




Name

Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendoza
Lorenzo Torres
Jose M, Laqui
Leocadio Vasquez
Marciano lLaqui
Adriano Vasquez
Norberto Aspinili
Alfredo Jardin
Pedro Alday
Federico C. Remo
Pedro Masilungan
Salvador Cuevas
Justo Javier
Alfredo lLacui
Fernando Cuevas
Quintin Castro
Aquilino Castro
Teofesto Marasigan
Epifanio Abraham
Ricardo Royo
Eugenio Chavez
Esteban Magsombol
Emiliano Limbo
Jose Limbo
Felix Limbo
Sotero Palma
Eugenio Palma
Antonio Lunar
Joaquin Lunar
Atanaci6 Lunar
Jose Flores
Magdalena Magsombol
Martina Magsombol
Mariano Lopez
Melecio Briones
Pedro Briones
Tomas Atienza
Higino Jobli
Catalino Chavez
Cerilo Magbuo
Francisco Pasia
Julian Robles
Sotara Pini
Vicente Robles
Doroteo Roblese
Salud Robles
Emilia Lopez
Savino Robles
Domingo Manintim
Felix Laqui
Eluterio Chavez
Periana Felix
Jose Dipasupil
Francisco Cuevas
NMoises Cuevas
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Age

A

Laborer
Mun, Mayor
Prop.

Gy Pads
Laborer
Laborer
Organist
Principal
Engr. Civil
Laborer
Laborer
Bo. Cneclr,
Bo, Lt.
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer

Mun, Pol, Sgt

Prop.

Atty at Law
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Helper
Helper
Helper
Housekeeper
None
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
Mun, Police
Laborer
Laborer
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Nare !Street or Berrio ‘Jex ‘Age 'QOccupetion

Conrsdo Lorzeno
Jusn Javier
Victoriano Msuleon
Timotea Laqui
Jose Sevilla
Santos Laqui
Simplicio Vertucio
Menuel Cueves
Braulio Mercado
Agapito Veray
Sinforoso Jusaey
Honesto Jusey
Marisno Mrealunga
Mcdesto Lunar
Melecio Laet
Alberto Hosena
Jose Felix
Rodrigo Patag
Nimecio Patag
Isidro Macalintal
Anenias Chavez
Francisco Cortez
Florentino Velena
Bartolome Mangundayao
Jose Pasia
Alejandro Cuevas
Andres Aguila
Pedro Aguila
Tomase Aguilas
Aguila
Calixto Remo
Cetealino Abuneador
Benito Abunsdor
Pelo Hosena
Nicolss Jobli
Norberto Lynar
Jose Lopez
Eduardo Reyes
Gavino Castillo
Victoriana Remo
Aurelio
Lucia Castillo
Dolores
Anarica
Rodolfo

Emilieno Csstillo
Patrocinia Lunar
Narcisoco Casstillo
Eligio Castillo
Conchita Csstillo
Pescual Csstillo
Romana Csstillo
Sixta Cacstillo
Sixto Csestillo
Menolita Abistros
Angelito Castillo
Eusebio Remo
Segurda Mendocdoc

Poblacion
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31
78
54
55
42
31
43
45
38
45
56
33
76

75

46
24
29
22
42
27
18
57
32

15
27

8
25
21

3
80
T4
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*Rate

Mun, Clerk

Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper
None

Mun. Sec.
Laborer

Leaborer
Leborer
Prope.
Atty-at-Law
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Principal
Laborer
Laborer
Lsborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Lsborer
Laborer

Laborer
Leborer
Leborer
Laborer
Leborer
Leborer
Leborer
Laborer
Laborer
Leborer
Homsekeeper
Leborer
Housekeeper
Helper

Leborer
Housekeeper

Leborer
Housekeeper

Ho usekeeper
Housekeeper

Laborer
Hovsekeeper

Mer. 8
Mar, 8
Mer, 8
Mar, 8
Mar, 9
Mar. 9
Mar. 9
Mar, 9
Mar, 9
Mer. 9
"Brolo
Mer,.10
Har.ll
Har.ll
Mer,12
Mar,12
Mar,12
Mar.l3
Mar,13
Mer.ls
Iar.19
Har.19
Mar,19
“ﬂr019
Mer,19
Hﬂ?-lg
Mer.19
Kar.lg
Mar,19
Mer.19
Mar.19
"Br.lg
Mar.1l9
Mar.19
Mer.21
Mar.21
Har.21
Mar,.21
Febo 6
FEbo 6
Feb, 6
Fﬁbo 6
Feb, 6
Feb.,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,.
Feb.
Feb,
Feb,
Feb.
Feb,.
Feb,
Feb,
Feb,
Feb.
Fﬂbo

Feb,
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'Street or Barrdo  Sex Age OQccupation ______QDate

22,

Maria Macalintal
Antonina Garcia
Rodelfe Garcia
Norma Garcia
Baltazar Macalintal
Lazaro Mscalintal
Elfidio Macalintal
Juana Macalintal
Fructuesa Hosena
Jusn Apuntar
Lucie Hosena
Isabel Apuntar
Melecio Lunar
Elfidio Lunar
Ponciano Lynar
Psula Cuevas

Luis Ateinaa
Alfonse Apuntar
Felipa Calingasan
Cornelio Apuntar
Catalina Terres
Francisco Apuntar
Felisa Apunter
Rafael Apuntar
Congepcion Apuntar
Eulogia Castille
Oregeria Celingasan
Presco Matibag
Leonila Jarins
Juana Macalintal
Ingnacia Castille
Mertin Maresigna
Petra Ajon
Benedicte Marasigan
Severo' Mina
Anacleta Ajon
Vivencie Mina
Sulpicio Torres
Felipa Laqui
Neria Lunar
Isebelo Lunar
Matilde Lunar
Agustin Lunar
Pedre Lunar
Virgilio Lunar
Eugenia Apumtar
Carlosa Velena
Damiana Cueves
Ignacia Samaniego
Romam Morong
Epifania Atienza
Juana Samaniege
Ricerdo Chavez
Narcisa Chavez
Juliana Chavez
Felisa Meracigen
Isabelo Reme
Elisa Laqui
Felix Magsombol
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EXHIBIT A

32
11
7
6m
90
45
24
18
47
26
21
31
6
4
2
82
13
45
40
25
18
18
3
5
13
50
30
11
4
40
40
35
28
3
50
45
11
80
70
60
55
23
41
4
Inm
11
75
40
25
21
40
7
49
14
19
3
35
32
7

Housekesper

Laborer
Leborer
Laborer
Housekssper
Housekesper
Laborer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper

Nene
Laberer
Leberer
Heusekeeper
Laberer
Housekeeper
Laborer

Helper
Housekeeper
Housekeeper

Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Laborer

Housekeeper

Laborer
Housekeeper
Helper
Laborer
Housekeeper
Hougekeeper
Laborer
Housekeesper
Laborer

None
Housekeeper
Hougekeeper
Laborer
Heusekeeper

Laberer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper

Laborer
Housekeesper
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8l.
g2,

84
85.
86,
87.
g8.
89.
90.
91.
92,
93.
Y%
95.
96,
97.
98,
99
100,

David Remo
Margerito Remo
Lsureans Remo
Remo
Jose Jusay
Julia Magsombol
Jusay
Jusay
Jusay
Jusay
Jusay
Jussy
Jussy
Jusey
Jusay
Jusay
Moises Jusay
Agatona Lequi
Jusay
Jusay
Jusay
Jusay
Jusay
Jusey
Eugenia Torres
Felicidad Remo
Marcelina Remo
Donato Remo
Ana Remo
Juana Torres
Silvino Torres
Siueon Beyer
Pablo Mendoza

Emiliana La Rose

Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendoza
Mendeza
Mendoza
Mendoza
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EXHIBIT A
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! Date
i

Laborer
Housekeeper

Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Housekeeper

Helper
Housekeeper

Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Housekeeper

' Feb, 6 45
' '.hl 6 "5
' !'ob. 6 "5
! Feb, 6 '45
! Peb. 6 45
' Feb,. 6 "5
' Feb, 6 '45
! Feb, 6 Y45
! Feb. 6 "05 '
' Beb, 6 '45
' Peb. 6 145
' Feb. 6 '45
! Febe 6 45
! Feb, 6 '45
! Feb. 6 '45
! Feb. 6 '45
! Fab, 6 45
! Feb, 6 m
! Feb, 6 145
! Feb, 6 145
! Feb, 6 "5
' Feb. 6 45
! Feb, 6 45
! Feb. 6 45
! Peb, 6 '45
! Feb. 6 145
! Feb, 6 '45
! !'eb. 6 '45
' Feb, 6 .45
' Feb., 6 45
! Feb, 6 '45
! Feb. 6 '105
'F.b. 6 '65
! Feb. u '45
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RECORD OF DEATHS BY THE JAPANESE
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS

Municipality of Bauan

NAMES ADDRESS SEX AGE OCCUPATION

Enrique Martines Poblacion | 45 Merchant

Maximino Brual . M 39 Physician

Eduardo Garcia . T Municipal Clerk

Teofilo Catimbang " 36 Policeman - Jap time

Severino Brual o 29 Farmer

Cesar Contreras " 26  College student

Jose. Alvares " 75 Casket Maker

Flaviano Catala . 40 Merchant

Sixto Cuerra g 41 School teacher

Prudencio Dimayuga " 40 Municipal Clerk

Salvador Dimayuga . 3 None

Pio Catimbang " 36  Policeman - Jap time

Juanito Lim . 29 Merchant

Clemente Alabastro . 55 Goldsmith

Dionisio Alangilan . 25 Policeman - Jap time

Moises Adalia » 45 sexton

Rev, Cirilo Castillo " 55 Priest

Rev. Segundo Isipin " 40 Priest

Rev. Estanislao Gran " 65 Priest

Tomas Masangcay . 49 Musician

Jacobo Sarmiento " 24 Policeman

Pablo Masangcay . 16 Laborer

Francisco Amurao " 29 Merchant

Alberto Montenegro " 57 Merchant

Gerardo Alcantara " 30 None

Jose Dimaculangan . 55 Ex-mayor - Jap time

Federico Cordero : 35 School teacher
n
n
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n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
n
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M
M
M
M
M
M
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|
M
M
M
M
M
M
M
Agapito Cordero N 38  Merchant
Anselmo Cordero N 45  Merchant
Meximo Cordero M 25 None
Leopoldo Sandoval M
Jovito Cordero M
Pedro Cordero N
Catalino Panganiban M
Santiago Panganiban M
Proceso Alcantara M
Sotero Marques M
Felix Madlangbayan Jr M
Braulio Arano M
Ciriaco Blay M
Elpidio Dimayuga M
Edilberto Dimayuga M
Santiago Dolor M
Eladio Manonsong M
Benjamin Orense M
Jose Aguila M
Pablo Panopio M
Nemesio Gonszales M
Juan Aporong M
Francisco Alix M
Gregorio Contreras M
Eusebio Castor M
Jose Generveo M
Pablo Ramos M
Neapolo Contreras M

40 Phar, clerk

22 Laborer

32 Merchant

33 Merchant

40 Merchant

38 Employee

50 Chief of Police = 1941
VA Student

40 Goldsmith

36  Chauffeur

63  Munecipal clerk
32  Muncipal clerk - Jap time
38 Merchant

38 Employee

25 Merchant

45 Goldsmith

45 None

37 Merchant

50 Musician

65 Laborer

48 School teacher
37 Lawyer

70 None

32 Merchant

18  Municipal clerk

-1-
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ADDRESS

OCCUPATION

Jorge Leynes

Severino Panganiban
Estanislao Manalo
Eugenio Datinguinco
Alfredo Marquesz

Felipe Custi

Macario Mapa
Tranquillino Panganiban
Felipe Conti

Faustino Buenviaje
Tomas Caringal
Iluminado Aguilar
Eulogio Contreras
Bienvenido Alvarez
Efren leynes
Trinidad Leynes
Florencio Caponpon
Liverato Ito
Ernesto Montalbo
Nemesio Gonda
Ricardo Cordero
Julio Rivera
Marmel Rivera

Lope Dolor

Jose Dolor

Isidro Dolor
Doroteo Beltran
Cayetano Magsino
David Ventura
Candido Garcia
Atanacio Anyayahan
Perfecto Arano
Alfredo Garcla
Celso Magboo
Teofilo Dimaculangan
Arnaldo Macarandang
Pastor Arano
Eulogio Contreras
Andres Umali

Jose Umall

Lorenso Macarandang
Nestorio Mapa
Lasaro Dayanghirang
Angel Hernpandes
Sixto Marquez
Wenceslao Leynes
Policarpo Hernandez
Pedro Cordero
Francisco Dimaculangan
Andres Aguila
Bartolome Alangilan
Arsenio Banco

Poblacion

ﬂ==:I33:333’3:::'—':3::::3::3’3:::3:3!!33.8.

Cabaret Manager
Carindero
U, S. Navy
Blacksmith
U, S. Navy
Laborer
Musician
Merchant
Baker
Laborer
Butchex-
Merchant
Merchant
Fisherman
Merchant
None
School Teacher
Student
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer '
Merchant

Phil, Cons.-Jap time |

None
None
None
None
Policeman

Policeman = Jap time

Phar, Clerk

None

None

Musiclan

None

Policeman~Jap time
Policeman~Jap time
Dentist
Blackemith
Goldsmith
Blacksmith
Goldsmith
Employee

Laborer

Laborer

Laborer

Laborer

None

Merchant

Barber
Policeman~Jap time
Laborer

Musician

None

Mason
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NAMES ADDRESS

Silvino Leynes FPoblacion
Felimon Gonda "
Bienvenido Caponpon
Florencio Caponpon
Gerardo Alcantara
Eugenio Romero
Macario Magnay
Guillermo Maquimot
Fermin Maquimot
Evarista Albastro
Juanito Leynes
Zoila Adap

Julian Matuli
Alberto Rosales
Marciano Buensuceso
Buenventura Resco
Esteban Manalo
Julian Caray
Rafael Dador
Filemon (Virata)
Antonio Castillo
Clavdio Pipawin
Venancio Caponpon
Leoncio Contretas
Eduardo Fernandez
Felix Buenviaje
Leon Marasigan
Teofilo Varia
Cenon Panopio
Carlos Quiano
Fermin Dimatula
Alejandro Briones
Bernardo Albay
Elizardo Albay
Eusebilo Abrenica
Pablo Cordova
Rosendo Briones
Isabelo Vriones
Euseblio Arguelles
Feliciano Manibo
Severino Concepclon
Bernardo Panopio
Pablo Diente
Pampilo Jusi
Eugenio Romero
Francisco Montenegro
Felipe Sandoval
Reynaldo Sandoval
Agaton Arquillo
Antonio Maliwanag
Felix Evangelista
Apolinario Abarquez
Pascual Ada
Melencio Punzalan

b

OCCUPATION

65 None

16 Laborer
16 Laborer
21 Laborer
28 Student
38 Merchant
22 Cochero
21 Baker

19 Houseboy
85 Church clerk
29 Laborer
20 Laborer
50 Laborer
37 None

66 Cochero
39 Laborer
70 None

17 Laborer
56 Musician
17 Musician
33 None

35 None

70 None

28 Laborer
35 None

23 Merchant
68 None

39 Laborer
20 None

22 None

30 Merchant
40 None

50 None

37 None

18 Laborer
65 Goldsmith
70 Farmer
18 Carpenter
37 Laborer
51 Laborer
40 Laborer
20 Student
16 Laborer
30 Laborer
38 Vendor
15 Student
60 Laborer
20 Laborer
25 Laborer
21 Laborer
30 Morchant
25 Farmer
20 Laborer
17 Laborer
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NAMES ADDRESS SEX AGE *  OCCUPATION

Martin Macaraig Poblacion
Amancio Buenviaje "
Santos Arano "
Antonio Umali "
Luciano Durante n
Simeon Desipedo
Roman Escalena
Modesto Chsi
Gregorio Marquez
Antonio Hernandez
Enfronio Buendia
Hermogenes Conti
Adolfo Alvar
Ramon Banco
Benito Abu
Felix Evangelista
Saturnino Ortega
Florencio Urtega
Simeon Castor
Domingo del Mundo
Arsenio Magdaleno
Sergio Asila
Atanacio Caringal
Florencio Abrenica
Cesar Abrenica
Juan Obispo

191, Nicolas Garcia

192, Buenaventura Bulanhagu

193, Mateo Cebalfin

194. Jose Bayanin

195, Simeon Cabalfin

196, Fusebio Faglinawan

197. Francisco Ito

198, Braulio Conti

199, David Adap

200, Francisco Datinguinao

201. Angel Agvila

202, Pablo Ramos

2030 .ﬁtﬂres I;dap

204, Bartolome Alangilan

25 Musicien

25 Laborer

23 Laborer

22 None

60 Laborer

1£ Blackemith

20 Laborer

66 None

35 Chauffeur

60 Laborer

28 Policemen-Jap time
20 Phil Cons~Jap time
32 Laborer

22 Merchant

19 Laundryman

27 Cochsro

60 Butcher

17 Laborer

70 None

26 Farmer

43 Barber

22 Musician

22 Fermer

24 Laborer

16 Laborer

37 Laborer

35 Ice cream vendor
19 Student

35 Merchant

37 None

17 Laborer

47 Merchant

25 Driver

1¢ Laborer

17 Cerpenter

28 Employee

67 None

35 Merchant

27 Butcher (ex-Bataan)
35 Laborer
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1. Out of around 32€ there were around 7C survivors,
2., Others not reported as yet,
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APO 500
17 October 1945

Proseoption Section (Report #74)
THRU Rxecutive Officer, War Crimes Branch

SUBJECT Morder of Thirty-nine Non-Combatant Filipino Civil-
ians.

1. INVESTIGATIONS:

a. Marder of thirty-nine non-combatant Filipino civil-
ians on 13 March 1945.

T L e

b. Placet Town of Rosario, Batangas, P.I.

=

e

¢. Method: Bayonet and rifle fire.

B

d. Motive: Unknown
e. Investigator: James P. REALEY, Jr. lst Lt., JAGD
f. Reviewer: Bert T, COMBS, Captain, JAGD

II. SUMMARY OF EVIDENCES:

Between seven and eight o'clock on the morning of 12
March 1945, approximately 15 Japanese soldiers appesred in the Town
of Rosario, Batangas, P.I., and apparently without reason commenced
shooting and bayonetting all of the people who could be found (RI,
3.5.7). No effort was made to distinguish between men, women and
children, and due to the feet that many of the men were able to run
away, most of the victime were women and children.

III. Victims!

a. As a result of these acts the follwoing thirty-
nine (39) identified victims were killed:

BAME AGE  §EX  NATIONALITY HOME ADDRESS  RECORD

BANAAG, RUFINA Adualt F Filipino Barrio Malas-as 7
Rosario, Batangas

BAROMLOS, Saturina Filipino Barrio Bagong Pooc
Ropario, Batangas

CAPILI, Virginia Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

GARANDANG, Lucio Adult Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

CASAIA, Maxima Adult Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, B atangas

1 US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
tion
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*COREQO, Demetrio

COREQ, Ilumineda

DALANGIN, Carmen

DALANGIN, Iluminada

DALANGIN, Jogefina

DALANGIN, Norma

DE CASTRO, Marieta

DE 'CASTRO, Lolita

DIWA, Angel

DIWA, Donato

DIWA, Felix

DIWA,-Laciana

DIWA, Socorro

GARCIA Ilias

ILAGAN, Crisante
JAVIER, Porferia
LAYLO, Placida 19
MANIENO, Blandina  Adult
MANIENO, Patricia

Adult

MASILUNGAN, Lorenzo Adult

RICTED

NATIONALITY
Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filioino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipfno

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

Filipino

2
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Barrio Malas-as 7
Rosario, Batangas

Barrio Malas-ae
Rogairo, Batangas

Barrio, Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

Barrio; Bagong Pooc
Rosario, Batnagas

Barrio Bagong Pooc
Rosario, Batangas

Barrio, Bagong Pooc
Rogario, Batangas

Barrio,Bagong Pooc
Roeario,Batangas

Barrio Bagong Pooc
Rogario, Batangas

Barrio Malag-as
Rosario, Batangas

Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batanzae

Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batnngas

Barrio Malas-es
Rogario, Batangas
Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

Namuko Barrio,
Ropgario, Batangas

Barrio Malas-as
Rosario Batangas

.

Barrio Malas-as
Rogario, Bztangas

+
I

1 b St
T 3

o~

Barrio Bagong Pooc
Rosario,Batangas

s
Al.l' .'_' - _-

Barrio M-=las-as
Rosario, Batanges

Barrio Mal=s-as
Rosario, Batangas

Namuko Barrio
Ropario, Batanzss
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ACE SEX EATIONALITY HOME ADDRESS

Concepcion Adult  J Filipino Barrio M-las-as
Rosario, Batengas

MENDOZA, Domian Adalt Filipino Barrio, Malas-as
Rogario, Batangane

MENDOZA, Dominga Adult Filipino Barrio Malasas
Ropario, Batangas

MENDOZA, Miguela Adult Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

BANOS, Agapita Adualt Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

RAMOS, Felipa 10 Pilipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

BAMOS, Leonila Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

RANOS, Leticia Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rogario, Batangas

RAVANO, Juana Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rogario, Batangas

SANDOVAL, Regina Adult Filipino Barrio Malas-as
Rosario, Batangas

Adult Filipino Namuko, Rosario
Batangas

TOLENTINO, Marcela Adult Filipino Mamuko, Rosario
Batangas

TOLENTINO, Sakce Adult M Filipino Namuko, Rosario
Batangas

b. It is probable that a number of other unidentified
people were killed, and still others wounded, but there is nothing in
the record upon which to base an estimate of the number of these victims.

IV. MITHESSES:

a. Statements were obtained from the following four (4)
witnesees:

EAME JAGE §EX HOME ADD

BARCMLOS, Desiderio 65 M Barrio Bagon Pooc
Rogario, P. I.

DALANGIN, Pantaleon a7 | Barrio Bagon Pooc,
Batangas, P. I.

MACALUITAL, Catalino 51 M Barrio Malas-as,
Romaario, Batangas, P. I.

a3
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AGE SEX _EOMB ADDRESS  RECOED

SANDOBAL, Magno 35 M Barrio Namuko, Rosario 1-2
Batangae, P. I.

b. No one witness saw all of the massacre, and all four
of them probably should be called as witnesses if the case is brought
to trial.

c. The following seven (7) witnessee were interrogated by
the Investizator-Examiner, and possess knowledge of this atrocity but
atatements were not obtained from them because their evidence would have
been cumulative in nature!

NAME AGE ADDRESS
BANAAG, Jhstino 45 Barrio Malas-as, Barrio Filipino
Batangas, P. I.

DE LEON, Nicasia Barrio Malas-as, Rosario Filipino
Batangas, P. I.

DIWA, Jacinto Barrio Melas-as, Rosario Filipino
Batangas, P. I.

MENDOZA, Felix Jarrio Malas-as, Rosario Pilipino
Batangas, P. I.

RABANO, Fabiano Barrio Malas-ae, Rosario Filipino
Batangas, P. I.

RAMOS, Benigno Barrio Malas-as, Rosario Filipino
Batangas, P. I.

RAMOS, Sison Barrio Malas-as, Rosario Filipino
Batangas, P. I.

V. EXHIBITS:
None.

VI. ANALYSIS OF TESTIMONY:

a. The evidence is sufficient to establish the fact that
at least thirty-nine (39) Filipino civilians, many of them women and
children, were murdered by Japanese Soldiers.

b. There is no evidence to iniicate that mauy of the victims
were guerillas, or engaged in other illegal activities, and the fact that

many of them were women and children would seem to preclude any such as-
eumpbion.

VII. IDENTITY OF PERFETRATORS:

The perpetrators of this atrocity are not identified other-
wise than as being Japanese soldiers.

VIII. RECOMMENDATIONS:
It is recommendedi thatt

a. The perpetrators of this offense, if and when apprehended
be tried for the murder of tairty-nine non-combatant Filipino civilians:

&
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The Inﬁ;rial Japanese Government be held responsible.

/s/ Bert T. Combs.
J/t/ BERT T. COMBS.
CAPTAIN, JAGD.
CHIEF OF REVIEW SECTIONS.

I concurt

/8] Theodore F. Angell.
/t/ THECDORE F. ANGELL.

Major, ¥. A.,
Acting Chief, ‘War Crimes
Investigation Section.

ARPROVED:
Alva C, Caprenter
byt

[/ John L. McCroham
ft/ ALVA C. CARPENTER

Colonel, J.A.G.D.
Chief, War Crimes Branch

(Case ¥o. G-96)

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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MAGNO SANDOBAL, after having been duly <orn, testified
At the Manioipal Building, Rosario, Batangae, P. I., on 26
September 1945, as follows!

Q. What is name, age, addrese and nationality?
A. Magno y 35 years old, and I live at Barrio Namuko,
Rosario, Batangas, P. I. I am Filipino.

Q. What i MI' occupation?
A. Yarmer. °

Q. If you move from your present address; where can you dbe
reached? .
A, I will noé move..

Did you gpuffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Jap-
anese, on March 13, 1945t
No.

Did you witnese any acte of miatreatment by the Japanese
on March 13, 194861

¥ea. At mdout 8 0O'clock in the morning of March 13, I was
hiding in the bushes between Namuko Barrio, andi Itlugan
Barrio, which adjoin each other. There were about one
thousand Filipino men, women, and children in the area
between the two Barrios, and they were running in all
directions to escape the Japanese. There were about 15
Japanese present, and I could see them ghooting at the
Filipinos. Practically all of the Filipinos managed to
escape, but, after the Japs left, I saw 10 dead Filipinos.
Some of the bodies that I saw were those of Lorenso
Magilungan: Sakeo Tolentino, hie wife Marcela, and their
childrent one old woman named Tanang: and Ilias Garcia.

Did you kmow any of the Japanese that were present on this
occasion?
I did not lmow any of them.

Did you kmow whether any of them were officers?

There were about 15 Japanese soldiers but I cannot descrive
them., I believe that they were from the Japanese Military
Police stationed at Lipa.

Is there anything farther that you can add to your statement?
No.

/e/ Magno Sandobal
[t/ MAGNO SANDOBAL

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES

)

)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ; se

)

TOWN OF ROSARIO

I,MAGNO SANDOBAL, being of lawful age, being duly sworn
on oath, state that I h ad read to me ani understood the
tranglation of the foregoing transcription of my interrogation
and all answers contained therein, consisting of one (1) page,

1 US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution
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are true to the best of my knowledge and bellef.

/8] Magno Sandobal
/t]/ MAGNO SANDOBAL

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of September
1945.

/8] James P. Healey, Jr. lst Lt. JAGD
[t/ JAMES P, HEALEY, JR. let.Lt. JAGD

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF ROSARIO

I, JOSE B, ZUNO, residing at Rosario, Batangae, P. I.,
being of lawful age, being duly sworn on oath, state that I
truly translated the questione and answers given from English
to Tagalog and from Tegalog to English respectively and that
after being transcribed, I truly translated the foregoing dep-
osition containing two (2) pages, to the witness! that the
witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signature thereto.

/u/ Jose B, Zuno
/t]/ JOSE B, ZUNO

Sabecribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of September,
1945. '

{8/ James P, Healey, Jr. lst Lt., JAGD
/t/ JAMES P. HEALEY, JR. lat.Lt., JAGD

I, JAMES P, HEALEY, Jr. let Lt., 0-2052588, JAGD, certify
that on the 26th day of September 1945, personally apveared
before me MAGNO SANDOBAL znd according to JOSE B. ZUNO g-.ve
the foregoing answers to the several questions set forth
therein; that after his testimony has been tranecribed, the
psald MAGNO SANDOBAL hed read to him by the said interpreter
the same and affixed his signature thereto in my presence.

Municipal Bldg. Rosario,

Batangas, P. I. /e/ Jamee P. Healey, Jr., lst Lt., JAGD

29 September 1945 [t/ JAMES P, HEALEY, JR. 1 st. Lt. JAGD
The following witness having been interrogated by the

Investizator-Examiner possesses knowledge of the facts set
forth in the above statment!

Name Age 4ddregs ionalit

Juana Garcila 20 Namuko Barrio, Rosario,
Batangas, P. I. Filipino

2
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DESIDERIO BARNELOS, after having been duly wworp, testified
at the Manicipal Buliding, Rosario, Batangas, P. 1. On 26 Sep-
tember 1945, as followsat

Q. Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A. Desiderio Barcelos, 65 years old, and [ live at Barrio Ba-
gong Pooc, Rosario, Batangas, P, I. I am Filipino.

Q. What is your occupation?
A. I ama farmer.

Q. Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese?
A. No.

Q. Did you observe any cases of mistreatment by the Japanese?

A. Yes. Between 7 and 8 o'clock in the morning of March 13, 1945,
I heard that the Japanese were coming to our Barrio, and when
I heard shots, I ran into the woods on the outskirts of the
Barrio to hide. I could not see anything from my hiding place.

I left my hiding placd late in the afternoon and went to the
center of the Barrio, I saw 14 dead bodies lying on the ground
near the houges in the Barrio. 1 saw the dead bodies of my
daughter, Saturnina Bexcelos, age, 30; and my two granddaughters,
Marieta de Castro, age 8; and Lolita de Castro, age 1. The bo-
diee all had been bayonetted and they had been burned.

Did you see any'Japanese present at the Barrio on the merning
of March 13, 19451

I sav two Japanese, but they were about 200 meters away from
me and I only amld get a glimpse of them, I coiuld not des-
eribe them.

Do you know any Filipinos who actually saw the Japanece bayo-
net any of the Filipinos, or who were present inside the Bar-
rio at the time the Japanese entered the Barrio?

No. A)l of those that were inside the Barrio were killed by
the Japanese.

Is there anything further that you can add to this statement?
¥o,

/n/ Desiderio Barcelos
/t/ DESIDERIO BACRCELOS

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES)

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ) 88

)
TOWN OF ROSARIO )

1, DESIDERIO BARCELOS, being of lawful age, being duly sworn
on oath, state that I had read to me anl understood the transla-
tion of the foregoing trunscription of my interrogation ani all
answers contained therein, consiffing of one (1) page, are true
to the best of my knowledge and belief.

|8/ Desiderio Barcelos
/t/ DESIDERIO BARCELOS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this_29 day of September
1945,

/e/ James P. Healey, Jr.
[t/ JAMES P. HEALEY, JR.
let Lt., JAGD

3 USA: ¥ Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES)

)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ; 88
)

TOWN OF ROSARIO

1, JOSE B. ZUNO, residing at Rosario, Batangas, P. I., being
of ‘lawful age, being duly sworn on oath, state that I truly trans-
lated the questiona and answers given from English to Tagalog and
from Tagalog to English respectively and that after being trans-
eribed, I truly translated the foregoing deposition containing
two (2) pages, to the witness; that the witness thereupon in my
presence affixed his signature thereto.

/8] Jose B. Zuno
Jt/ JOSE B. ZUNO

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of September, 1945.

|s/ James P. Healey, Jr.
[t/ JAMES P. HEALEY, Jr.
1st Lt., J.A.GD

CERTIFLOAZE

I, JAMES P. HEALEY, Jr., lst Lt., 0-2052588, JAGD, certify
that on the 26th day of Beptember 1945, personally appeared before
me DESIDERIO BARCELOS and addording to JOSE B. ZUNO gave the fore-
going answers to the several questions set forth therein; that af-
ter his testimony has been transcribed the said DESIDERIO BARCE-
10S had read to him by the said interpreter the same and affixed
his signature thereto in my presence.

Municipal Bldg, Rosario, |8/ James P. Healey, Jr.
Batangas, P. I. /t/ JAMES P, HEALEY JR.

l.t Lt.' Jo‘-G-D.
29 September 1945

The following witness having been interrogated by the Inves-

tigatér- Examiner possesses knowledge of the facts set forth in
the above statement:

Hame Age Addregs Nationality

Mariano de Castro 56 Barrio Itlugan, Filipino
Rosario, Batangas,
P. 1

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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PANTALEON DALANGIN, after having duly sworn, testified at the
Manicipal Building, Rosario, Batangas, P. I., on 26 September 1945,
as follows:

Q. Please state you full name, age, address and nationality.
A. Pantaleon Dalangin, 37 years old. I live at Barrio Bagong
Pooc, Rosario, Batangas, P. I, I am a Filipino.

Q. What is your eccupation?
A. I an a farsar.

Q. If you move from your present address, where can you be reached?
A. If I move, Ilwill be found at Rosario, Cavite Province.

Q. Did you suffer any mistreatment by the Japanse?
A. No, but I witnessed mistreatment of others by the Japanese.

Q. Will you describe fully what this mistreatment that you Q-
served was?

A. On March 13, 1945, I was 111 with typhoid fever, My family
hid me in the woode about 100 meters from Barrio Bagong Pooc,
because the Japanese were expected to come to the Barrio.

At about 7 o'clock in the morning of March 13, from my hiding
place, I saw abbut 50 Filipinoe running from the 8 different
houges in the Barrio, and I saw 3 Japanese soldiers chasing
them with fixed bayonete. I did not see the Japanese bayonet
any of these people because they moved out of my line of vision.

At about 11 o'clock of the same morning,cl left my hiding place.
and wenf te my hotise in the Barrio. About 20 meters from my
house I saw ths bodies of my wife, Carmen lLaylo, age 31; and my
three daughters, Iluminada, age 6f; Norma, age 4; and Josefina,
age § monthe. I saw that my family were all dead, and I
counted 47 bayonet wounds on my wife's body. Each of my chil-
dren were bayonetted at least 4 times.

Did you see any other bodies in your Barriol?

I saw one other dead body, and I identified this body as thet
of Placida laylo, age 19, my wife's niece. Because of my
weakened condition, I was not hble to look for any more bodies.

Do you know the names of any of the Filivinos that escaped

from the Japanese at the Berrio?

Yes, All of the following maneged to escape the Japanese:

Venacio Mandigma, Julian Mandiigma, Roman Cabral, Pablo Men-
dloza, and Mariano de Castro.

Do you know where any of the Filipinoe that you mentioned
can be reached?
All of them, except Pablo Mendoza, still live in the Barrio.

Do you know the names of the Japanese present at your Barrio
on March 13, 19451
No.

Is there anything further that you can add to this statement?
No.

/#/ Bantaleon Dalangin
[t/ PANTALEON DALANGIN

5
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COMMONWRALTH OF THE Pmmp:na;

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ; 8s

TOWN OF ROSARIO )
I, PANTALEON DALANGIN, being of lawful age, being duly eworn

on oath, state that I had read to me and understood the translation

contained therein, coneisting of one (1) pege, are true to the

best of my knowledge and belief.

s/ Pantaleon Dalangin
;t/ PANTALEON DALANGIN

Subscribed and sworn tb before me this 29 day of September,
1945.

L

o/ f#6men P. Healoy, Jr,, lat Lt,
;t§ JAMES P, HEALEY, JR., lst Lt.
JAGD

COMMONWRALTH OF THE PHILIFPINES

)

)
PROVINCZ OF BATANGAS ; $5

)

TOWN OF ROSARIO

I, JOSE B.. ZUNO, residing at Rosario, Batangas, P.I., being
of lawful age, being duly sworn on oath, state that I truly trans-
lated the questions and answers given from English to Tagalog and
from Tagalog to English respectively anl that after being trans-
cribed, I truly translated the foregoing dep#sition containing
two (2) pages, to the witnese; that the witness thereupon in my
presence affixed hie signature thereto.

/s/ Joge B. Zuno
/t/ JOSE B. ZUNO

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of September
1945.

/e Jamea P. Healey Jr., lst Lt,
[t/ JAMES P. HEALEY JR., lst ILT.
JAGD

CERTIELICATE

I, JAMES P. HEALEY, JR., let Lt., 0-2052588, JAGD, certify
that on the 26th day of September, 1945, personally apreared be-
fore me Pantaleon Dalangin, and accoring to Jose B. Runo, gave
the foregoing answers to the weveral queations set forth; that
after his testimony has been transcribed, the sald PANTALEON
DALANGIN had read to him by the said interpreter the same and
affixed his signaturs thereto in my presence.

Municipal Bldg, Rosario, |8/ James P. Healey, Jr., 1lst Lt.

Batangas, P. I. /t/ JAMES P. HEALEY, JR., 1lst LT.
29 September 1945 JAGD

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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OATALINO MACALINTAL, after having been duly sworn, testi-
fied at the Manicipal Building, Rosarie, Batangas, P. I., on
26 September, 1945, as follows!

g, What is your full name, age, address and nationality?
. OCatalino Macalintal, 51 years old. I live At Malas-as
*  Barrio, Mosario, Batangas, P. I. I am Filipino.

Q. V¥hat is your occupation?
A. Iam a farger.

Q. If you move from your present adiress, where can you be
reached?
A, ; 'ul not move.

Q. Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Jap-
anege!
A. No.

Q. Did you witnese any acte of mistreatment by the Japanese
on March 13, 19457

A. Yes. At about 7 o'clock in the morning or March 13, there
ware about 40 of us Filipinos at Malas-as Barrio. We saw
about 40 Japanese soldiers approaching the Barrio, so
everyone in the Barrio started to run in various direct-
fone, trying to escape from the Japanese. I heard a great
deal of shooting but did not actually see anybody fall.
1 managed to escape to the woods outside the Barrio.

I returned to the Barrio at about 6 o'clock in the evening
of the same day. I counted 26 dead Filipinos lying on the
ground in the Barrio. From the marks on the bodies, I
éonld gee that they had also been bayonetted.

I recognized all of the dead bodies. They were: Patricla
Manieno--adult, Blandina Manieno--adult; Juana Ravano--
adult; Maxima Casala--adult; Kufina Banaag--adolt;
Portferia Javier--adult; Felix Diwar-12 yrs old; Angel
Diva~-10 years old; Donato Diwa--8 yrs old; Luciana Diwa--
5 yrs old; Socorre Diwa--1 month old; Regina Sandoval--
adult; Virginia Capili--adult; Damian Mendoza--adult;
Miguela Mendogza--adult; Comcepcion Mendoza--adult; Agapita
Ramog-~adult; Leonila Ramos--10 yres old; Leticia Ramog--

3 yre 0ld; Dominga Mendoza--adult; Felipe Bamos--10 yrs
old;Leonardo Mendoza--adult; Crisanta Ilagan--adult;
Demetrio Coreo--adult; Lucio Carandang--adult; and
Iluminada Coreo--10 yre old.

Did you recqgnize any of the Japanese .that were present at
the incident that you described?
No. '

Do you know to what unit theee Japanese belonged?
Yes, I think they were Military Police from Lipa.

Can you desoribe any of the Japanese?
No.

Is there anything further that you can add to thies state-

ment?
¥o.

[s] C.M.

US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
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/ | Catalino Macalintal
! CATALINO MACALINTAL

COMMONWEADTH OF THE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF ROSARIO )

I, CATALINO MACALINTAL, being of lawful age, being duly
swvorn of oath, state that I had read to me and understood the
translation of the foregoing transcription of my interrogation
and all anewers contained therein, consisting of one (1) page,
are true to the best of knowledge and belief.

/s/ Catalino Macalintal
/t/ CATALINO MACALINTAL

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of September
1945.

/8] James P. Healey, Jr., lst Lt,, JAGD
/t/ JAMES P, HEALEY, JR., lst LT., JAGD

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPIIIS;

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS S8
TOWN OF ROSARIO

I, JOSE B. ZUNO, residing at Rosario, Batanges, P. I.,
being of lawful age, being sworn on oath, state that I
truly translated the questions and answers given from Englieh
to Tagalog and from Tagalog to English respectiVvely and that
after being transcribed, I truly translated the foregoing
deposition containing two (2) pzges, to the witness; that the
witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signature thereto.

/e/ Jose B. Zuno
/t/ JOSE B. ZUNO

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29th day of September
1945.

/s/ James P. Healey, Jr., lst &t., JAGD
[t/JAMES P. HEALEY, JR. 1ST. LT., JAGD

CERTIIEICATE

1, JAMES P, HEALEY, Jr., lst Lt., 0-2052588, JAGD, certify
that on the 26th day of September, 1945, personally appeared
before me CATALINO MACLINTAL, and according to JOSE B. ZUNO,
GAVE THE FOREGOING =nswers to the several questions set forth
therein; that after his testimony hag been ‘transcribed, the

8
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said CATALINO MACALINTAL had read to him by the said interpre-
ter the same and affixed his signature thereto in my presence.

Manicipal Bldg. Rosaric,

Batangas, P. I;
,.’ James ’l l‘ll.,‘. :’.. let Mlj JAGD
/t/ JAMES P, HEALEY, JR., let LT., JAGD

26 September 1945,

The following witnesses having been interrogated by the
Investigator-Examiner possess knowledge of the facts set forth
in the above statement;

Jugtino Banaag 45 Malas-as Barrio, Filipino
Rogario, Batangas, P. I.

Jacinto Diwa 31

Fabiano Rabano 63

Benigno Ramos

Nicasia de Leon 30

Felix Mendoza

Simeon Ramos 40

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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1 November 1945

NEMO: Re Investigation of Case G~97, San Jose, Batangas Province,
Lagon, P.I.

1. INVESTIGATIONt

This investigation was conducted during the period 4 Octo-
ber to 31 October 1945, by Captains Allen H, FEOPLES, CAC, end
Oharles C. THOMPSON, TC, pertaining to the following!

"Murder of 107 Filipino civiliane, reeidents of the town
of San Jose, Batangas Province, luzon, P.I., and the burning of
property by members of the Imperial Jepenese Army, during the months
of January, February and March 1945, in violation of Paragraph 299,
Boles of Land Warfare, JM 27-~10,"

II. PROCEEDINGS:

1. The following named witnesses were duly sworn and testi~ -
fied as hereinafter appears!

FLEY AGE HOME ADURESS

AGUILA, Josefa 37 Taysan, San Jose, Ba-
tangas, P.I.,

Tayesan, San Joge, Ba-
tm.. P.I1.

Bigain II, Ban Josge,
Batangas, P.I.

S8abang, Ban Jose, Ba-
tangas, Pel.

Lapulapu 1I, San Jose,
Batangase, Pel.

Banaybanay II, San Jose,
Batangas, P.1.

g2
ATIENZA, Fausto 18 |
M
M
M
M
MACALINAO, Teotimo 68 M Lapulapu I, San Joge,
r
¥
 }
N
M
r
¥
M
M
¥

ERIONES, Baltasar 66
ILAO, Gregorio 54
JAVIER, Amado 48
LORZANO, Baturnino 28

Batangas, P.l.
Lapolapu I, San Joge,
Batangas, P.I.
Lapulapn II, San Jose,
Batangas, P.l.
Poblacion, San Joge,
htm’-.' P.IO
Lapulapu II, Sen Jose,
Ba.tangas. Pols
Banaybanay I, San Jose,
Batangas, P.I.
Taysan, San Jose, Ba-
tanges, P.I.
Taysan, San Jose, Ba=
tﬂ.'ﬂaﬂ-ln P.Is
Poblacion, San Jose,
Batangas, P.I.
Banaybunay 1I, San Josge,
Bata.nga!. P.I,
Poblacion, San Jose,
Batangas, P.l. 4

MACAPAGAL, Leovigilda 61
MAFALAD, Agapite 2b
MARALIT, Dominica M, 44
MENDOZA, Melchor

MERCADO, Jose

MO0G, Rosends

MOO0G, Sofia

“PARZ, Dionisio

FAIMES, Egmedio

‘REMO, Modesta Umall

US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution
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UMALI, Manuel f Podblacion, San Jose,
_ Batangas, P.I, 1

UMALI, Maxima = = . Poblacion, San Jose,
AR L Batangas, P.I. 7

VAIR, Catalina. =~ | Lapulapu I, San Jose,
EA T ANE Batangas, P.I. 19

% dfmoamm residing at 1433 Prodencio Street, Sampaloc,
Manila and OGuillermo MARIANO, residing at 96 Loreto Street, Sampaloc,
Manila, P.l., were m: svorn and acted as stenographer-interpreters.

3., The following witnesses were interrogated and possess know-
ledge of the facts set forth in the statement of Agapita MAPALAD:

TAME & 4A0R SEX ADDRESS HATIORALITY

AQGUIIA, Tomasa 40 ¥ lapulapu II, San Jose,
i Batangas, P.l. Filipind

CASTRO, Maria de 3 T lapulapu II, San Jose,
' Batangas, P.l. Filipino

DICAL, Matilde 26 ¥ lapulapu II, San Jose,
Batangas, P.l. Filipino

4. The following witness was interrogated and possesses know=
ledge of the facts set forth in the statement of Sofia MOOG?

HAME ACE X ADDRESS NATIONALITY

AUSTRIA, Florencio 20 M  Taysan, San Jose,
Batangas, P.l. Filipino

5. The following identified document and photographs were
consideted!

List of dead of San Jose, Batangas, EXHIBIT "A"
P,I, Identified by Municival Se- Record 1
cretery, Manuel UMALI.

Photograph of ruins of Municipal EXHIBIT "B"
Building, San Jose, Batangas, P.I. Record 2
Identified by Municipal Secretary,

Manuel UMALI.

Photograph of ruins of home of Dr.

Luna, former mayor of San Jose, Ba=

tangas, PsI. Identified by Munici-
" pal Secretary, Manuel UMALI.

. Photograph of Modesta Umali Remo, EXHIBIT "DV
holding her baby, and her maid, Record 6
ptanding besides the ruins of her
home and drugstore, San Jose, Ba~
tangas, Psl, Identified by Modee=
‘ta Umali Remo,

Fhotograph of Sofia Moog, showing

 secar on left hip from bayonet
wound, Identified by Sofia MOOG.

-’-
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EXHIBIT *F*

Photograph of Rosenda Moog,
Record 651

showing scars on back and right
hip from bayonet wounds. Iden-
tified by Rosenda MOOG.

Photograph of Josefa Agulla,
showing scar under left breast
from bayonet wound., Identified
by Josefa AGUILA.

EXHIBIT *g"
BRecord 48

IIXI. Exhibit "A" liste 107 Filipino civilians who were killed by
the Japanese. The following Filipino civiliane, all residents of San
Jose, Batangas Province, P.I., appear in the statements of the witnesses

and likewise in Exhibit "A":

AGUILA, Rogario

~ ALABASTRO, Angelmo

ALABASTRO, Butiquio

ALABASTRO, Felipe
AQUINO, Diosdado

ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,

ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,
ATIENZA,
BRIONES,
BRICHNES,

CUSTADIO,

Concepcion
Conchita
Congolac'on
Dionisia
Eulogio
Leonarda
Lucita
Marcelino
Fedro
Sancho
Sixto
Arcadio
Simeon

Genoveva

FRANDI, Vicente

GUCE, Adriano

GUCE, Antonio

HERNAWDEZ, Francisco

AGE SEX

Eilled
ADDRESS
Barrio Taysan

L]

Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Tayeau
Barrio Taysan
Berrio Taysan
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Tayean
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Tayean
Barric Bigain II
Barrio Bigain II
Barrio Banaybanay I
Poblacion

Barrio Lapulapun II

Barrio Lapulapu II

© 2 E X W X X E = = OB 8 & X =W 4 4 3 E = X X

Barrio Lapulapu II

-3-
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HAME
HIDALGO, Agapita
ILAGAN, Miguel
ILAGAN, Regalado
ILAGAN, Teofilo
LORZANO. Nelia
MACALINAO, Cirilino
MACALINAO, Teodoro
MAGRACIA, Hilgrion
MAIATA, Valeriano
MARALIT, Lorenzo
MENDOZA, Jose
MERCADO, Arcadio
MO0G, Dorotea de
MOOG, Iuise

Delfin

Encarnacion

Bufemia

Jose

Librada

Iucinda

Marceliano

Maria

Mariano

Nicomedes

Regina

Rogelio
PAEZ, Victorino
PASIA, Martin
PATRON, Melecio

PERADA, Esteban

RESTRICTED

AGE
45

s
¥
M
M
M
¥
N
M
M
N
M
M
M
M
M
¥
¥
M
5
¥
M
F
|
M
¥
M
M
M
M
M

ADDEESS
Barrio Taysan
Barrio lLapulapu II
Barrio Sabang
Barrio lLapulapu II
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Sabang
Barrio Lapulapu II
Poblacion
Barrio Lapulapu III
Barrio Taysan |
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Taysan
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Barrio Banaybanay II
Poblacion
Barrio lapulapu II
Barrio Sabang
Barrio Sabang

-4-
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HAME AGE
REMO, Filomeno

REMO, Roman
REMO, Venancio

ADDRESS
Barrio Lapulapu II
Barrio Lapulapu II
Poblacion
SILVA, Brigida
SILVA, Loreta de
TALAG, Jose
UMALI, Florentino

Barrio Taysan
Barrio Taysan
Poblacion

Barrio Lapulapu I
Barrio Lapulapu I

Barrio Lapulapn I
Barrio Lapulapu I

UMALI, Rezan
VALE, Trobio
VILLANUEVA, Felipe

:I:::HH:IIE

Wounded
AGUILA, Josefa Barrio Taysan

JAVIER, Amado Barrio Lapulapa II
MERCADO, Felicidad Barrio Banaybanay I

e

MERCADO, Pacita Barrio Banaybanay I

MOOG, Rosenda Barrio Taysan

i
I

MOOG, Sofia Barrio Taysan

e

IV. DISCUSSION:

The atrocities committed by the Imperial Japanese Army in
January, February and March 1945 in the town and outlying barrios of
San Jose are a repetition of the Rosarioc, Teal, Cuenca, and Bauan
massacres. In each of these five towns, which adjoin each other, the
Japanese murdered innocent civilians and destroyed the property of the
residents.

=¥

The witneeses interviewed in the San Jose case were ignorant
as to the identify of the perpetrators other than that they were members
of the Militery Police stationed at Lipa, R16, and that one of the Japa-
nege was a civilian interpreter named Watanabe, R4. Watanzbe is mentioned
in the other cases stated above as are the Military Police from Lipa.

|

e S g
Tt i 4

¥ =

V. I believe that sufficient competent evidence now avallable
has been perpetuated.

|8/ James P. Healey, Jr.
/t/ JAMES P, HEALEY, JR.
lgt Lt., JAGD
Group Supervisor

- b -
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MANUEL UMALI, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province, P, I., on 15
October 1945, as followa:

Q Please state youwr full name, age, address and nationality.
A Manuel Umali, 32 years old, Foblacion, San Jose, Batangas,
P, I,, Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Municipal secretary of San Jose, Batangas Province, P. I,

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not,
how can your whereabouts in the future be ascertained?
I intend to remain at my present address.

Will you please relate in your own words the events relating
to the arrest of the mayor of this town, the parish priest,
the chief of police and the clerk of court, in January 1945.
On or asbout January 23, 1945, the bodega (warehouse) owned by
Taiwan Takosoku ( a Japanese cotton company) which was used
by the Jdpanese Army as their bodega, was looted and burned by
guerrillas and civilians.

On the 27th of January 1945, a group of Japanese soldiers,

the exact number I do not remember, came and arrested men,

women and children, herded them in the public plaza and ques~
tioned them regarding the burning and looting of the bodega.
Uneble to get from any of these people the necessary informatiom,
they arrested the town mayor, the parish priest, the chief of
police and the clerk of court.

Since the time these four men were arrested, I never saw three
of them again, and I presume they are now dead, the same being
corroborated by the excavation of their bones by their close
relatives and widows, These three are Venancio Remo, mayor;
Vicente Frande, parish priest; and Jose Talag, clerk of court.
The chief of police, Nicomedes Luna, age 50, Poblacion, San
Jose, Batangas Province, was able to escape and is alive today .

I hand you these papers marked "Exhibit A* and ask you what
they are.

"Exhibit A" is an exact copy of the official list of Filipinos,
all residents of the Municipality of San Jose, Batangas, P. I.,
who were killed by the Japanese in this Municipality during the
months of January, February and March, 1945. The original offi-
cial list of dead in this Municipality was prepared by myself
at the direction of the Pravincial Governor of Batangas, Ps X.o
and I have checked this copy. "Exhibit A", with the official
14st and find it true and correct, and I have placed my initials
on the lower right hand corner of each page of "Exhibit AV,

At the time you were compiling this list of dead, did you make
any survey of damage done to buildings and homes in your muni-
cipality?

Yes, I did, I also complled a list of homes and

-1l- US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Prozecution
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buildings that the Japancse destroyed by fire in San Jose.
The official survey made by me lists some 58 homes and -
buildings, with contents, destroyed by fire, valued at an
eatimated 110,000 pescs, pre-war prices, I did not actually
see the Japanese set fire to any of these homes, but during
my survey, I naturally talked to many witnesses who did,

I hand you "Exhibit B* and ask you what it is?

It is a picture of the ruins of the Municipal Building in
San Jose, Batangas, P, Il, which was burned by the Japanese
on March 5, 1945.

I hand you "Exhibit C" and ask you what it is?

It is a picture of the ruins of the home of Dr, Vitalliano

Luna, on Taft Street, San Jose, Batangas, P, I. It was one
of the first homes burned by the Japanese in San Jose, It

was burned on January 27, 1945.

Do you know the names or units of any of the Japanese who
were in San Jose during the months of January, February and
March, 1945%

No, I do not, nor can I give you eny satisfactory description
of them,

Have you anything further to add to your statement?
Nothing that I can think of at this time.

/s/ Manual Umali
/t/ MANUEL UMALI
COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, MANUEL UMALI, being duly sworn on oath, state that I
have read and understood the foregoing transcription of my inter-
rogation and &ll answers contained therein, consisting of two (2)
pages, are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

/8/ Manuel Umali
/t/ MANUEL UMALI

Subscribed and sworn to before me this lst day of November,
1945.

/s/ Allen H, Peoples,

/*/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

-2—
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CERIIZICAIE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, wtr. masa. CAC, and CHARLES C.
THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 15th day of
October, 1945, personally appegred before us MANUEL UMALI, and
gave the foregoing answers to the several questions set forth;
that after his testimony had been transcribed, the said MANUEL
MALT read the same and affixed his signature thereto in owr
presence,

Municipal Bldg, Sen Jose, 4}'/

H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P, I. PEOFLES

Allen
t/ ALLEN H,

m November, 19![5-
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MODESTA TMALYI REMO, after having been dul- sworn, testified at
the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Piovince, P, I., on iV
October 1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Modesta Umali Remo, 41 years old, FPoblacion, San Jose, Batangas
Province, P. I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Pharmacist.

Do you intend {o remain at your present address, and if not,
how can your future whereabouts be ascertained?
Yea, I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese?
No, but my husband was killed by the Japanese.

¥ill you please relate fully what happened with regard to the
killing of your husband by the Japanese?

On January 27, 1945, my husband, Venancio Remo, age 4O; then

the municipal secretary, Bienvenido Oblea, age 27; a pdliceman,
Eliseo Villanueva, age 27; my servant, Teodoro Talag, age 12;

our friend Avelino lara, age 27; and I, were hiding in our shelter
which was under our house. Avelino lara sighted abaut 30 Japanese
coming towards the mmicipality, He told this to my husband who
went out of the shelter to meet the Japanese. I was looking at
him through a hole in our shelter. I saw that two Japanese tied
him while three others had fixed bayonets ready, pointed towards
him, When I saw this, I ran out of the shelter and escaped. I
never saw my husband again, After I escaped the Japanese burned
our home and drug store,

> © PP P o PO

I was informed by one Gavino Guce that the bones of my husband
were in the sitio:of Ambonambon in the barrio of Pinagtungulan.
My sister, Maxima Umali and the uncle of my husband, Esteban Remo,
Bugenio Remo and Eliseo de Leon went to that place on May 30,
1945 and found three bodies, They recognized these bodies as the
remains of our parish priest, Vicente Frandi, ege 55; my husband,
Venancio Remo, age 40; and the clerk of court, Jose Talag, age
27. The priest was identified because of his robe and false
teeth and my husband because of his forehead, Pastora Talag re-
cognized the third body as her brother.

Do you know the names of any of these Japanese who took your
husband?

I know only one, Watanabe, an interpreter who was about five
feet six inches tall, slender built, about 30 years old, smooth
shaven, short-cropped hair, no glasses, dark complexion. IHe
was the liaison officer between the Japanese military and the
Filipino civilian,

Can you describe any of these Japanese besides Watanabe?
No.

Can you describe their uniform?
They wore khaki uniform.

US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA

Prozecution

—=s Exhibit No, 257
'2‘-‘ Snil -'_t:‘i'. ;
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MODESTA TMALI REMO, after having been dul" sworn, testified at
the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province, P, I., on 14
Octobexr 1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Modesta Umali Remo, )41 years old, Foblacion, San Jose, Batangas
Province, P. 1., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Pharmacist.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not,
how can your future whereabouts be ascertained?
Yes, I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese?
No, but my husband was killed by the Japanese,

Will you please relate fully what happened with regard to the
killing of your husband by the Japanese?

On January 27, 1945, my husband, Venancio Remo, age 40; then

the municipal secretary, Bienvenido Oblea, age 27; a padliceman,
Eliseo Villanueva, age 27; my servant, Teodoro Telag, age 12;

our friend Avelino lLara, age 27; and I, were hiding in our shelter
which was under our house, Avelino Lara sighted abomt 30 Japanese
coming towards the mumnicipality, He told this to my husband who
went out of the shelter to meet the Japanese., I was looking at
him through a hole in our shelter. I saw that two Japanese tied
him while three others had fixed bayonets ready, pointed towards
him, When I saw this, I ran out of the shelter and escaped, I
never saw my husband again, After I escaped the Japanese burned
our home and drug store,

> © PO P o PO

I was informed by one Gavino Guce that the bones of my husband
were in the sitio:;of Ambonambon in the barrioc of Pinagtungulan.
My sister, Maxima Umali and the uncle of my husband, Esteban Remo,
Bugenio Remo and Eliseo de Leon went to that place on May 30,
1945 and found three bodies. They recognized these bodies as the
remains of our parish priest, Vicente Frandi, age 55; my husband,
Venancio Remo, age 40; and the clerk of court, Jose Talag, age
27. The priest was identified because of his robe and false
teeth and my husband because of his forehead, Pastora Talag re-
cognized the third body as her brother.,

Do you know the names of any of these Japanese who took your
husband?

T know only one, Watanabe, an interpreter who was about five
feet six inches tall, slender built, about 30 years old, smooth
shaven, short-cropped hair, no glasses, dark complexion, He
was the liaison officer between the Japanese military and the
Filipino civilian,

Can yéu describe any of these Japanese besides Watanabe?
No.

Can you describe their uniform?
They wore khaki uniform.

US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA

Prorecution
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CERTIZTICAIE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Cept., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C.
THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 15th day of
October, 1945, personally appegred before us MANUEL UMALI, and
gave the foregoing answers to the several questions set forth;
that after his testimony had been transcribed, the said MANUEL
(MALI read the same and affixed his signature thereto in our
presence,

Municipal Bldg, San Jose, /s/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P, I. /t/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES

1st November, 1945. /8/ Charles C. Thompson
- /*%/ CHARLES C, THOMPSON, Capt., 1C
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Can you describe their insignia?
No.

Do you know what unit they belonged to?
Mo,

I hand you Exhibit *D* and ask you what it is,

It is a picture of me holding wy ¥, and my maid is standing
beside me, We are standing in front of the ruins of our home
and drug store in the Poblacion of San Jose, Batangas, P. I.

When was your home and drug store burned?
In the month of February of this year when the Japanese were
in San Jose, killing people and burning their homes, Our home

and drug store was valued at ¥5,000, pre-war prices, and we lost
everything we owned,

Have you anything else to add to your statement?
No.

COMMORWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

P ——
] [l -
T i

I, MODESTA TMALI REMO, being duly sworn on oath, state that
I have read and understood the foregoing transcription of my inter-
rogation and all answers contained therein, consisting of two (2)
pages, are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

:

1

{ esta Unali
55 MODESTA TMALI REMO

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31st day of October,
1945.

—_
L LA
- :

..:i"-lw-

Allen les

ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment

T S T O e e e e

e [ YR
by AN

CERTIFICATE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C,
THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 14th

-5«
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day of October, 1945, personally appeared before us MODESTA TMALY
REMO, and gave the foregoing answers to the several questions set
forth; that after her testimony had been transcribed, the sakd
MODESTA TMALI REMO read the seme and affixed her signature thereto
in our presence.

Municipal Bldg., San Jose, /8/ len H. les
Batanges Province, P,I. /%/ ALLEN HY PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

31st October, 1945 /8/ les C son
/t/ CHARLES C, THOMPSON, Capt., IC

-6-
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MAXIMA UMALI, after having been duly sv =n, testified
at Podblacion, San Jose, Batangas Province o. 29 October,
1945 as follows:

E:au state your full name, age, address and nation-
ty.

Maxima Umali, 49 years old, single, Poblacion, San Jose,
Batangas Province, Filipino.

Is this your permanent address?
Yes sir.

Do you intend to remain at your present addrees, and if
no¥, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascertain-
odl

Yes, I intend to remain at my present address.

What is your occupation?
Housekeeper,

Are you the sister of Modesta Umali Remo?
Yes, I am her sister.

Were you with the searching party that found the remains
of three persons on 30 May 1945 at the sitio of Ambonam-
bon in the barrio of Pinagtungulan, Batengas Province?
Yes, I was one of the searching party that found the re-
mains of my brother in law, the parish priest and the
clerk of the court, all of San Jose, Batangas Province.

My sister, Modesta Umall Remo, asked me to go along
with four others = My uncle, Esteban Remo, my cousin,
Bugenio Remo, Paz Talag, and Eliseo de Leon to a place
in barrio Pinsgtungulan where one Gavino Guce said that
there were some remains of dead persons which he thought
were the remains of my sister's husband, the parish priest,
and the clerk of the court.

We five went to the sitio of Ambonambon in the barrio
of Pinagtungulan on 30 May 1945 and at the place where we
were directed by Gavino Guce we discovered the remains of
three persons.

Did you recognize the remains as those of your sister's
husband, the parish priest and the clerk of the court?

Yes, we recognized the remains of the husband of my sister,
Venancio REMO, by means of the large forehead which we
were all familiar with and the familiar characteristics of
the bridge of his nose. We recognized the remains of the
parish priest, Vicente FRANDI, by means of his false teeth
which his servant, Eliseo de Leon, a male about 23 years
0ld, who was then with us confirmed as that of his masters'
We recognized the remains of the clerk of the court, Jose
TALAG, by his teeth which were over-lapping and protruding.
We five returned the remains of all three back to my sis-
ter's house who buried the remaine of all three:in the ce-
metery in San Jose.

Do you know who killed these three persons?

No. US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution

7= Deferse Exhibit Ne, 2__3_(
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Do you kmow the names of any of the Japanese who were
in San Jose at that time, or can you describe any of
thenm?

No.

Have you saything further to add to your statement?
No, I have nothing further to add.

Maxima Unall
/t/ MAXIMA UMALI

COMMONWRALTH OF THE PHILLPPINES)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS Ss
TOMN OF SAW JOSE

I, MAXIMA UMALI, being duly sworn on oath, state that I
had read to me and understood the translation of the fore-
going transoription of my interrogation and all answers con-
tained therein, consisting of two pages, e true to the
best of my knowledge and belief,

/8] Maxima Unali
/t] VAXIMA UMALI

Subseribed and sworn to before me this lgt day of
November, 1945,

[s/ Allen H, Peovles

/t/ ALLEN H., PEOPLES, Capt., GAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment,

OOMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS SS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, GUILLERMO ¥, MARIANO, reslding at 96 Ioreto, Sampaloc,
Manila, being duly sworn on oath, state that 1 truly trans-
lated the questions and answers given from English to Tagalog
and from Tegalog to English respectively, and that after being
transcribed, I truly translated the foregoing deposition con~

teining 2 pages, to the witness; that the witness thereupon
in my presence affixed her signature thereto

[s]
/t/ GUILLERMO F. MARIANO
-8
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. Subscribded and sworn to before me this lst day of
November, 1945,

/s/ Allen H. Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H, PEOFLES, Capt., CAOC,
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment..

CERZIZICAZE

I, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Qapt., ASN 0249524, CAC, certify
that on 29 October, 1945, personally sppeared before me
MAXIMA UMALI, eand according to GUILLERMO F. MARIANO, gave
the foregoing answers to the several questions set forth
therein; that after her testimony had been transcribded, the
said GUILLERMO ¥. MARIANO had read to her by the sald inter-
preter the same and affixed her signature thereto in my pre-
sence,

Poblacion, San Jose, /s/ Allen E. Peoples =

Betangaes Province, luzon, /t/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC,

P. 1. Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

lst November 1945,

A CERTIFIED THUE COPY

/ 4{%}?’?”
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AGAPITA MAPALAD, after having been duly sworn, testified
at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province,
P.l1., on 4 October 1945, as follows!

Please state your full name, age, address and national-
ity.

Agapita Mapaled, 26 years old, Barrio Lapulspu II, San
Jose, Batangas Province, P.I., Filipino,

¥hat ie your occupation?
Housekeeper.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tainedl?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Jap-

rnesel
5o, but my husband wes killed by the Japanese.

Please tell us what you know about the killing of your
hsband.

On Jenuary 23, 1945, three o'clock in the morning, my
husband went out of our house and told me he would help
Dr. Ona evacuate his belongings to our barrio. 1444

not hear nor see him again alive. Victoriano Ilagan,

age 26, and Urbano Ilagan, age 21, who were his companions
told me that he was taken by the Japanese.

On June 26, 1945, I and three other women - Matilde Dical,
age 26, Tomasa Aguila, age 40, and Maria de Castro, age
34, went to a place between the barrios of Masiit and
Cumba, Lipa, where Dr, Ona directed us, in eearch of our
husbends., We found four bodies there, my husband,
Felipe Villanueva, age 31; Matilde's husband, Miguel
Ilegan, age 37; Tomasa's husband, Teofilo Ilagan, age 40;
and Maria's husband, Martin Pasia, ege 43. We recog-
niged that they were the men we were looking for, be-
cense of their clothes. My husband had still the scab-
vard of his bolo although the bolo was no longer in it.
These four were tied together with their hands behind
their backs.

Do you know the names of any of the Japanese responsible
for this atrocity?
Fo, I did not see them,

How did you know they were killed by the Japanese?
Because the people around that place said they were.
Besides, tying people together with their hands behind
their backs and killing them is exclusively a Japanese
gtyle of mass murders

Do you know of any Japanese unit stationed around the areal
Yo.

Have you anything else to edd to your statement?
No.

US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA 5 ; ,

8
Prosecution t/ AGAPITA NAPALAD

aferrse -
i Exhibit No, 28/ -10-
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COMMONWEALYE OF THE PHILIPPINES)

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS 8s
TOWN OF SAN JOSE ;

I, AGAPITA MAPALAD, being duly sworn on oath, state
that I had read to me and understood the translation of the
foregoing transcription of my interrogation and all answers
contained therein, consisting of one 8) page, are true to
the best of my knowledge and belief, ;

[s]

/4] AGAPITA MAPATAD

Bubscribed and sworn to before me this lsgt day of
Hovember, 1945.

[e/ Allen E, Peoples

,t, ALLEN H. m. Oapt.. »
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

COMMONWEAIZH OF THE PHILIFPINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudencio Street,
Sampaloc, Manila, P.I., being duly sworn on oath, state that
1 truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
1ish to Tegalog end from Tagalog to English respectively,
and that after being transcrided, I truly translated the
foregoing deposition containing one (1) page, to the witness;
that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signa-
ture thereto.

/o] Alfredo Cuevas
]t/ ALYREDO CUEVAS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this lgt day of
November, 1945,

(=

4llen H, Pecples
/t/ ALLEN H, FEOPLES, Capt. CAC,
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment,

«1l=
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CERZIZICAZE

¥We, ALLEN H. FEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES

0. THOMPSON, Oapt., 01000484, T0, certify that on 4th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us AGAPITA MAPALAD,
and according to ALFREDO OUEVAS, gave the foregoing answers to
the seversl questions set forth therein; that after her testi-
mony had been transcribed, the said AGAPITA MAPALAD had read
to her by the sald interpreter the same and affixed her sig-
nature thereto in our presence,

Municipal Bldg., San Jose, /e/ Alden H, Peoples
Batengas, Province, P.Il. /t/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Oept., CAC

~Ast_ November, 1945. /s/ Sharles C. Thowpson
/4] CEARIES C. THOMPSON, Capt., 10

The following witnesses having been interrogated by the
Investigator-Examiners possess knowledge of the facte set
forth in the above statement: ’

LAME ~AGE ~ADDRESS HATIONALITY

Iapulapu II, San Jose, Filipino

Tomasa Aguila
Province, P.I,

Province, P.1.
Lapulapu 1I, Sen Jose, Filipino
angas Province, P.I.

40
Maria de Castro L4 Lapulapu II, San Jose, Filipino
25

Matilde Dical

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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BALTAZAR BRIONZS, after having bogn dulg :'orn, ;;gti-
an Jose, Batangas Prov=-

ince, P.I., on 4 October 1945, as follows:

Q
A

Please state your full name, age, address, and nation-
ality.

Baltazar Briones, 55 years old, Barrio Bigain II, San
Jose, Batangas Province, P,I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Farmer.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Jap-
anese?
No, but my two sons were murdered by the Japanese.,

Will you please relate fully how this happened.

On February 4, 1945, at about 4 o'clock in the afternoon
my sons, Simeon Briones, age 20; Arcadlo Briones, age 30
and I went to the house of lielecio Patron in Pinagtung-
ulan. They arrived at the house first, When I was

gbout 12 meters south of the house, I saw my sons sur=-
rounded by five Japanese soldiers., The Japanese tiled

the two together with thelr hands behind thelr beacks.
Three of them bayoneted my sons while two stood guarding
the place. I hid among the banana trees south of the
house, then I crept slowly away to Blgain II.

Next day, February 5, 1945, I returned to Pinagtungulan.
It was 5 o'clock in the morning then, There were no
Japanese. I found the bodies of my two sons. Simeon

had four bayonet wounds, one on the chest, two on the
right side and one on the back; Arcadio had three bayonet
wounds, two on the brezst and one on the back. I buried
their bodies in the place where they were killed, near
the house of llelecio Patron, in the Barrio of Pinagtung-
ulan, San Jose, Eatangas Province,

Do you know the names of any of these five Japanese who
murdered your sons?
No.

Can you describe any of them?

I remember only their clothes, trousers of peale khai
color and denim, long-sleeved shirt. They wore native
"balangzot" hats.

Can you describe their insignia?
lo.

Do you kr >w to what unit they belonged?
Ho.

Do you know the names of any Japanese who were stationed
in this area in January and February 19457
No.

Do you know of any reason that might have caused these

13
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five Japanese to murder your sons?
No, they were peaceful cltlzens.

Have you anything further to add to thls statement?
No.
/s/ Baltazar Briones
/t/ BALTAZAR BRIONLS
CONMMONWEALTH OF THE PHEILIPPINES)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS Ss
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )
I, BALTAZAR BRIONES, being duly sworn on oath, state
that I had read to me and understood the translation of the
foregoing transcription of my 1nterro?ation and all answers

contained therein, consisting of two (2) pages, are true to
the best of my knowledge and bellef.,

/s/ Ealtazar Briones
/t/ BALTAZAR BRIONES

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3lst day of Oct-
ober, 1945,

/s/ Allen H, Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H., PEOPLES
Capt., CAC
Investiguting Offlcer,
War Crimes Investigating
Detachment.

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPIVES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS

TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudenclo Street,
Sampaloc, Manila, P.I., being duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions end answers gilven from Eng-
1ish to Tagalog and from Tagalog to English respectively,
and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the
foregoing deposition containing two (2) pages, to the wltness;
‘that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signa-
ture thereto,

/s/ Alfredo Cuevas
/t/ ALFREDO CUEVAS

Subscribed and sworn to 'before me this 3lst day of Oct-
ober, 1945,

/s/ Allen H, Peoples
/t/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES
Capt., CAC
Investigoting Officer,
War Crimes Investig-ting
14 Detachment.
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CERIIEICAIE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES
¢. THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on 4th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us BALTAZAR BRIO~
NES, and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the foregoing ans=-
wers to the several questions set forth therein; theot after
his testimony had been transcribed, the said BALTAZAR BRIO-
NES had read to him by the sald interpreter the same and af-
fixed his signature thereto in our presence.

Municipal Lldg., San Jose, 8 Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P.I. t/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES
Capt., CAC

3lat October, 1945. Charles C. Thompson
CHARLES C. THOMPSON
Capt., TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
U lon, L Leles
(2 Snf.
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LEOVIGILDA MACAPAGAL, after having been duly sworn, test-
1fied at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Prove-
ince, P,I., on 4 October 1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and national=-
ity.

A Leovigilda Macapagal, 51 years old, Lapulapu I, San
Jose, Batangas Province, P.I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Housekeeper.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and 1if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you receive any mistreatment at the hands of the
Japanese?
Yes.

Please relate to us fully what happened.

It was Wednesday, February 14, 1945, About 5:30 P.M.,
while I was preparing our supper, four Japanese soldiers
ceme to our house. Then they went downstairs and guard-
ed the place. 1

About 6 o'clock, half an hour later, eight more Japanese.
They had MP armbands, These eight took my husband, Ro=-
men Umall, age 69; my son-in-law, Diosdado Aquino, age
34, and my son Florentino Umall, age 17. Two Japanese
tied them together with their hands behind thelr back,

T kneeled down so that they would be spared. Instead,
one Japanese kicked me. Two other Japanese set our
house on fire. I kneeled down again. ‘The Japanese who
kicked me then slapped my face when I tried to put out
the fire. My husband and son-in-law were blindfolded
but my son was not, and then the Japanese, 12 altogether,
took them to a lot north of our place.

Next day, February 15, 1945, at 9 A.M. , my son Estanis~
lao Umall, age 27 and I went to that lot north of our
house. There we found the three bodies. Jy husband
had a bayonet wound on the left chest which went through
the back; my son-in-law had a bayonet wound in a similar
place and my son had three bayonet wounds, one on the
left chest, one on the left shoulder and one on the
right chest., We buried them in our shelter at the yard
of Benito Oblea.

Do you know the names of any of these Japanese?
No.

Can you describe any of them?

There was one officer, I think he was an officer because
he had a saber, He was about 5 feet 6 inches tall, med-
fum build, sbout 25 years old, wore & cap so I did not

see his heir, smooth shaven, I thihk he spoke English,
because I heard him say "very .0ld" when the other Japanese
took my husband.

USA v Tomeyuki YAMASHIT,
Can you describe their insignia? Prosecution e A
No. B
~fense- Exhibi 12 :
B t N RS/
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Do you know to what unit they, belcnged?
I believe eight of them were MP'S.

Do you know what provoked the Japargse to commit this .
atrocity?
No..-

Have you anything more to say about this case?
No.

/8/ Leovigilda Macapagal
/t/ LEOVIGILDA MACAPAGAL

GOMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES)
'PROVINCE OF EATANGAS ss
TOWN OF SAN JOSE ‘

I, LEOVICILDA MACAPAGAL, belnz duly sworn on oath, state
that I had read to me and understood the translation of the
foregoing transcription of my interrozction and all answers
contained therein, consisting of two (2) pares, are true to
the best of my knowledge and belief.

/s/ Leovizilde Kacapegal
/t/ LEOVIGILDA IACAPAGAL

Subscribed and sworn to belore me this 29 day of Oct-
ober, 1945. ]

/s/ Allen H, Peoples

/t/ ALL® E. PEOPLES
Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer,
Viar Crimes Investigating
Detachment.

COMMONWEALTI OF THE PHILIPPIIES

)
)
PROVINCE OF BATANCAS ) Ss
)
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudencio Street,
Sampalac, llanila, P.I., belng duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
1lish to Tagalog and from Tagalog to English respectively,

17
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and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the
foregoing deposition containing two (2) pages, to the wit-
ness; that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed her

slgnature thereto.

/s/ Alfredo Cuevas
/t/ ALFREDO CUEVAS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of Oct~
ober, 1945,

/s/ Allen H. Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H, PBOPLES
Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer,
War Crimes Investigating
Detachment.

CERTIFICATE

We, ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES
C. THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484 TC, certify that on the 4th day
of October, 1945, personally appeared before us LEOVIGILDA
MACAPAGAL, and according to ALUFREDO CUEVAS, gave the foregolng
answers to the several questions set forth,therein; that after
her testimony had been transcribed, the said LEOVIGILDA KACA=-
PAGAL had read to her by the sald interpreter the same and
affixed her signature thereto in our presence,

Municipal Bldg., San Jose /8/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangaes Province, P.I. /t/ ALLEN H., PEOPLES
Capt., CAC

20 October, 1945, Charles C. Thompson
CHARLES C. THOMPSON
Capt., TC

A CERTIFIEP TRUE COPY:
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BESIRICIED

CATALINA VALE, after having been duly sworn, testified at the Municie
pal Building of Sen Jose, Batangas Frovince, Ps Iy on 4 October 1945, as
follows

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationalitye
A Catalina Vale, 64 years old, Lapulapu I, Sen Jose, Batangas Province,
Pe Iee Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Housekeepere

Do you intend to remein at your present address, and if not, how can
your whereabouts in the future be ascertd ned?
I intend to remain at my present address.

Do you know of any atrocity cammdtted by the Japanese in Lapulapu I
sometime in February 1945%
Yeae

Please relate in your own words what happeneds

On February 14, 1945, Wednesday afternoon, 3 o'clock, we saw I5 Japae
nesee Four of them went upstairs and found my brother-in-law Trobio
Vale, age 57, sitting bn the floor near the door of our house in Lapue
lapu Ie One of the Japanese, who was carrying a long saber, apoke scmee
thing which I did not understands Then the others made signs %o Trowdo
to stends Hardly hed he stood when two of the Japanese took hold of
him by his clothes and dragged him to a place opposite ours with three
Japanese standing on guard, When the two Japanexe: came out, no one

was with thems

PO b o » O O

This time there were already many, the exact number I cannot remembery
Japanese in the street, These Japanese dispereseds About ten of them
went north and met three persons, Ansvlmo Alabastro, age 45; Eutiquio
Alabastro, age 20 and Felipe Alabastro, age 18 and took them to the
house of Herman Baliwag which was ebout 50 meters from our house, These
three were then tied with their hands behind their backs to the posts
of the housee Their feet, too, were tieds Then the house was burned
and these three were burned alive, I could hear their screems while
the house was burninge

Next day, about daybreak, I went t:tl:; house of my son, Delfin Ona, sgge

$2, about 50 meters, too, north of houses It was burneds I found
the body of my son tied to a post near the door, his body was burned
also with the head eut off,

Do you know the names of any of the Japanese responsible for the bure
ning of these houses and killing of the people you mentioned?¥
Noe

Can you demcribe any of them?
No, I was too frightemed to pay close attention to their features,

Can you describe their uniform?
All I know was that they had khaki uniforms end two of them had nets
over their bodies which I was informed were used for camouflages

Can you describe their insignia? US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Noe Prosecution

“efease s 5
Do you know what unit they belonged to%yycived, Exhibit No. 22"/
Noe e

What do you think provoked those Japanese to burn the house and kill
the people in Lapulaph I?




RESIRICTIED

I do not knowe We were all peaceful citizense

Have you enything further to edd to your atatement?
Noe
her

CATALINA X VALES

mark

We hereby certify that the above named witness, being unable to sign
her name, did make the above *X" as her mark in our presences

/8/ Allen H, Peoples
/14 ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Captes CAC

/8/ Charles Ce Thompson
/T/ CHARLES Co THOMPSON, Capt.s TC
COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPFINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE
I, CATALINA VALE, being duly sworn on oath, state that I had read to
me and understood the trenslation of the foregoing tremscription of my intere
rogation and all answers contained therein, consisting of two (2) pages,
are true to the best of my knowledge and belief,
her
CATALINA X VALE
mark
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of October, 1945.
/S/ Allen H, Peoples
/T/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, CePte, CAC

Invesatigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment,

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIFPFINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudencio Street, Sempeloc, Manila,
Pe Ies being duly sworn on oath, state that I truly translated the questions
and answers given from English to Tagalog and from Tagalog to English rese
pectively, and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the foregoing
deposition containing two (2) pages, to the witness; that the witness there=
upon in my presence affixed her mark theretos

/8/ Alfredo Cuevas
/T/ ALFREDO CUEVAS

«20-
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of October, 1945.

/S/ Allen H, Yeoples

/T/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capte, CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

o
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CERTIIFICALE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capte, 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C. THOMPSON,
Captss 01000484, TC, certify that on 4th day of October, 1945, personally
appeared before us CATALINA VALE, and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave
the faregoing answers to the several questions set forth therein; that
after her tesfimony had been transcribed, the sald CATALINA VALE had read
to her by the said interpreter the same and affixed her mark thereto in

our presences

Municipal Bldge, San Jose, /8/ Allen H, Paghles
Batangas Province, P. Ie /T/ ALLEN H, PEOFLES, Captes CAC

29 October, 1945 /8/ Charles C4 Thampson
/T/ CHARLES Co THOMPSON, Captes TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COFY3

Dl lton, 55
/et 26 Onf.
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TREOTIMO MACALINAO, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Municipel Building of San Jose, Batangas Frovinge, P, I., on 4 October,1945,
as follows;

Q Please state your full name, ege, address and nationalitye
A Teotimo Macalinao, 58 years old, Barrio lapulapu I, Sen Jose, Batangas
Province, Ps lsy Filipino,

What is your occupation?
Senior Plant Sanitation Inspector, Bureau of Flant Industry, Manilae

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not, how can
your whereabouts in the future be ascertained?
I intend to remain at my present address.

Do you know of eny atrocity commdtted by the Japanese in Lapulapu I
sometime in February 1945%
Yes, there was burning of houses end killing of civilians,

will you relate in your own words the story of the occasion of the
burning of houses and killing of civiliaens in the barrio of Lapulapu
I and II on or about February 1, 1945.

On February 1k, 1945, at 9 Pe M., I returned from Tikiwan, Rosario,
Batangas Province, where I got unhusked rices When I reached home "
found out that my two sons were not theres My wife, Fomposa Umali
Macalineo, said that she saw them riding in the truck of the Japaneses

At 6 Ae M. February 15, 1945, I saw the body of my mon, Teodoro, age
24, at the burned house of Benito Obleas His hands were cut off at the
wrist end his feet cut off at hhe ankle, I recognized him through his
buckle, his gold tooth and the mole above his right egebrow, On that
same day ebout 9 o'clock we burfed him at the air raid shelter under
the burned house.

On February 18, 1945, I found my other son, Cirilino Macalinao, age
26, at the yard opposite our house, He had his right hand cut off and
his right eyebrow bruiseds He had bayonet wounds on the left breast
which ran through the backe He was covered with dry corn huskse I ree
cognized him through his "San Beda College" buckle with his name one
Hee too, was buried in the same place my other son was.

Do you know the names of the Japanese who killed your sons?®
No., Neither cen I describe any of them inasmuch as I did not see them,

Do you know of any Japanese unit stationed around this area at that
time?
Noe

Do you know what provoked the Japanese to kill your sons?
Noe

Have you enything more to add to this statement?
Noe

PO PO b O PO

/S/ Teotimo Macalinao
/T/ TEOTIMO MACALINAO

wglm
RESTIRICTIED /S/ Te Me

USA. v Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution ;

P Exhibit No, 25/
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Subscribed end sworn to before me this 29 day of October, 1945.

/8/ Allen H, Yeoples

/T/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capte, CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment,

CERIIEICAIE

We, ALLEN He PEOPLES, Capte, 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C., THOMPSON,
Capts, 01000484, TC, certify that on 4th day of October, 1945, perscnally
appeared before us CATALINA VALE, and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave
the faregoing answers to the several questions set forth therein; that
after her tesfimony had been transcribed, the sel d CATALINA VALE had read
to her by the said interpreter the same and affixed her mark thereto in

our presences

Municipal Bldg., Sen Jose, /8/ Allen H, Pagiles
Batangas Province, P. Ie /T/ ALLEN H, PEOFLES, Captes CAC

29 October, 1945 /S/ Charles C4 Thempson
/T/ CHARLES C, THOMPSON, Captes TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COFY:
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RESIRICIER

TROTIMO MACALYNAO, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Unnlf:ilr.l Building of San Jose, Batangas FRrovinge, P, Ies on 4 October,1945,
an ows

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationalitye
A Teotimo Macaelinao, 58 years old, Barrio lepulapu I, San Jose, Batangas
Province, Ps ley Filipino,

What is your occupation?
Senior Plant Sanitation Inspector, Bureau of Plant Industry, Manilae

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not, how can
your wheresbouts in the future be ascertained?
I intend to remain at my present address.

Do you know of emy atrocity committed by the Japanese in Lapulapu I

sometime in February 1945t
Yes, there was burning of houses and killing of civilians.

Will you relate in your own words the story of the occasion of the
burning of houses end killing of civiliens in the barrio of Lapulapu
I and II on or about February lli, 1945

On February 1lh, 1945, at 9 Pe M., I returned from Tikiwan, Rosario,
Batangas Province, where I got unhusked rice. When I reached home I
found out that my two sons were not theree My wife, Pomposa Umali
Macelineo, said that she saw them riding in the truck of the Japaneses

At 6 Ae M, February 15, 1945, I saw the body of my son, Teodoro, age
2, at the burned house of Benito Obleas His hands were cut off at the
wrist end his feet cut off at hhe ankle, I recognized him through his
buckle, his gold tooth and the mole above his right egebrow, On that
smme day about 9 o'clock we burfed him at the air raid shelter under
the burned houses

On February 18, 1945, I found my other son, Cirilino Macalinao, age
26, at the yard opposite our house, He had his right hand cut off and
his right eyebrow bruiseds He had bayonet wounds on the left breast
which ran through the backe He was covered with dry corn huske, I re=
cognized him through his *San Beda College" buckle with his name one
Hes too, was buried in the same place my other son was.

Do you know the nsmes of the Japanese who killed your sons?
No. Neither can I describe any of them inasmuch as I did not see them,

Do you know of any Japanese unit stationed around this area at that
time?
Noe

Do you know what provoked the Japanese to kill your sons?®
Noe

Have you anything more to add to this statement?
Noe

PO PO > O PO

/S/ Teotimo Macalinao
/T/ TEOTIMO MACALINAO

w22
RICIED /S/ Te Mo

US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution :

“edaase Exhibit No, 28/
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BESTIRICIED

I, TEOTIMO MACALINAO, being duly sworn on oath, state that I have
read and understood the faregoing tranmeription of my interrogation end
all answers contained therein, consisting of two (2) peges, are true to
the best of my knowledge and belief,

/8/ Teotimo Macalinao
/T/ TEOTIMO MACALINAO

Subscribed ana eworn to before me this 27 day of October, 1945.

/8/ Allen H, Peoples

/T/ ALLEN H, PEOFLES, Capte, CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment

SERTIXICALE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., 024952, CAC, and CHARLES C. THOMPSON,
Capte, 01000484, TC, certify that on 4th day of October, 1945, personally
appeared before us TEOTIMO MACALINAO, and gave the foregoing answers to
the several questions set forth; that after his testimony had been transe
eribed, the said TEOTIMO MACALINAO read the seme and affixed his signature.
thereto in our presencee

Mioipll. Bldgey; San Jose, /S/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P. Ie /T/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Captes CAC

27 October, 1945 /8/ Cherles C. Thompson
/T/ CHARLES C, ''HOMPSON, Captes TC

LA NS R T -
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AMADO JAVIER, after having been duly sworn, testified at
the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province, P. I.,
on 4 October 1945, as follows!

Q  Please state your full name, age, address and national-
ity.

A Amado Javier, 48 years old, Barrio lapu-lapu II, San
Jose, Batangas Province, P. I., Mlipino.

What ie your occupation?
Ex-gailor, World War I Veteran.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Jap-
anesel
Yes.

1]
Will you please tell us about this mistreatment?
About 4130 P, M,, February 14, 1945, two Japanese came to
our house in the barrio of Lapulapu II. They took me to
a place about a half kilometer from our house and told
me that they would shoot, me near the bank of Vale River

which is the boundary of Lapulapu I and Lapulapu II.

As we walked, I waited for a chance to catch one of the
Japanese off-guard. It came, and I grabbed the rifle
of one Japanese at a moment when he was relaxed. While
we grappled for the rifle, the other Japanese retreated
about five pacee backward and shot me, the bullet pase-
ing through the base of my neck on the left side. The
Japanese I was struggling with took advantage of this
moment and, with a strong jerk, pulled the rifle from
me. However, I ran and managed to escape.

Do you know the names of any of these two Japanesel!
Fo.

Can you describe them!?
Except for the fact that they were wearing civilian
clothes, I cannot give any further description.

Do you know what unit they belongedto?

They told me, when I requested them to refrain from burn-
ing the houses, that that could not be, because they
were Military Police from Lipa.

Have you anything further to add to thie statement?

8/ Amado Javier
T/ AMADO JAVIER

US.A. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
tion
efense Exhibit No-&

Received:
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COMMONWEAIZH OF THE PHILIPPINES)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, AMADO JAVIER, being duly sworn on oath, state that I
have read and understood the foregoing transcription of my
inte tion and all anewers contained therein, consisting
of one (1) page, are true to the best of my knowledge and
belief.

/8/ Amado Javier
/T/ AMADO JAVIER
Subseribed and sworn to before me thie 27 day of October,
1945.

/8/

8/ Allen H. Peoples
/?/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes.
Investigating Detachment.

CERIIXICAIE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C.
THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 4th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us AMADO JAVIER, and
gave the foregoing answers to the several questions set forth;
that after his testimony had been transcribed, the said AMADO
JAVIER read the same and affixed his signature thereto in our
presence.

Municipal Bldg, San Jose, /8/

Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P, I. /?/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

27 October, 1945. /8/ Charles C, Thompson
|7/ CEARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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MELCHOR MENDOZA, after having been duly sworn, testified
at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province, P, I,,
4 October 1945, as follows!

on

Q Please state your full name, aga, address and nationality.

A Melchor Mendoza, 41 years old, Parrio Lapulapu II, San
Jose, Batangas Province, P. I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Farmer, and barrio lieutemant of Lapulapu II, San Jose,
Batangas Province, P. I.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascer-
‘tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Were you also the barrio lieutenant of lLapulapu II, San
Jose, Batangas Province, P. I., in February 1945, when
the Japanese burned the houses and killed the civilians
of that barrio?

No, but I was the auxiliary barrio lieutenant then.

Do you hln‘k.notlodco of the burning of houses and kil-
ling of civilians by the Japanese military on or about
?brury 14, 1945,

es.

¥Will you relate in your own words the events that hap-
pened in the barrio of lLapulapu II at that time.

On February 14, 1945, about 4 o'clock inthe afternoon

I and eight other men were gathering corn in my field in
Barrio Lapulapu II, San Jose, Batangas Province. I saw
four Japanese about 50 meters away. Two of them went
southward, the other two came towwarde us. When one of
them wae about 20 meters from us, I found out that he
had fixed bayonet and was ready to shoot us. The eight
men ran away. When thie Japanese was about five meters
from where I was, I ran away too, to a place about %
kilometer northeast.

About 9 o'clock that evening, Fulgencio Guci, age 45,
Marciano \Manalo, age 15, my little son, Rufo Mendoza and
I went t*hn house of Marciano, left him there, and then
proceeded' to my.house. When we arrivedv at my house, a
friend, Potenciano Bolanos, age 55, told me that many
people in our ‘barrio were dead. He told me also that
my son Jose, age 14, was dead and that we bury him then.
We went to my corn field in the northwestern part of
lapulapu II taking the body of my son, Jose, with us.

There we looked around for other people that were killed
by the Japanese. We found the bodies of Adriano Guei,
age 55; Pamlino Villanueva, age 60; Franciseco Hernandes,
age 65 and Valeriano Malata, age 60; They had gun shot
and bayonet wounds. We buried the bodies of my son,

Jose and Adriano Gueci in a place near my corn field.

We then told the relatives of the three other men where
their bodies counld be located.

Fext day, February 15, 1945, as we walked around my corn
field I saw the body of Filomeno Remo, age 27. He had

TRTC1ED oA ™ Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
RESTRICTED % »
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bayonet wounds in the left chest and on both arms. Near
him was his son, Boman Remo, age 3, who, although wounded
on the back near the left shoulder through the chest, was

On February 16, 1945, we sav near my corn field the body
of AntonSo Guci, age 14, He had bayonet wounds, Ve bu-
ried him near the place where we buried my son, Jose
and Adriano Guei.

Did the Japanese burn any houses in Lapulapu II?
Yes, they burned the houses at 4 o'clock in the after-
noon, February 14, 1945,

Do you know the names of any of these Japanese who were
responsible for the burning of the houses and killing of
civilians in your barro?

¥o.

Can you describe any of them?

No. However, the two Japanese who came towards my corn
field,on February 14, 1945, were both wearing khaki pants
while one of them wore white, long-sleeved polo shirt
instead of khaki shirt that the other one was wearing.

Do you know what their insignia looked like?
No.

Can you tell what unit they belonged to?
No.

Do you know what provoked the Japanese to kill the people
you have mentioned and burn the houses in lapulapu 111
No. We were all peaceful citizens.

Have you anything more to say about thie case?
No.

Q
A
Q
A
Q
A
Q
A

/8/ Melchor Mendoza
/T/ MELCHOR MENDOZA

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES)

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ) 88
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )

I, MELCHOR MENDOZA, being duly sworn on oath, state that
I had read to me and understood the translation of the fore-
going transcription of my interregation and all answers con-

- ol =
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tained therein, consisting of two (2) pages are true to the
best of my knowledge and belief,

/8] Melghor Mendoza
/%/ WELCHOR MENDOZA

Subscribed and eworn to before me this _27_  day of October,
1945,

/8/ Allen H, Peoples

/T/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

COMMONWEALTE OF TEE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ) 88
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudencio Street,
Sampaloc, Manila, P. I., being duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
1ish to Tagalog and from Tagalog to English respectively,
and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the
foregoing deposition containing two (2) pages, to the witness;
that the witness thereupon in my presence affixéd his signa-
ture thereto.

/8] Alfzedo Cuevas
/T/ ALFREDO CUEVAS

- Subscribed and sworn to before me thie 27 day of October,
1946,

/ Allen E, Peoples

/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

CERIIFICAIE

We, ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES
C. THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on 4th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us MELCHOR MENDOZA,
and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the foregoing answers
to the several questions set forth therein; that after his
testimony had been transcribed, the said MELCHOR MENDOZA had
read to him by the said interpreter the same and affixzd his
signature thereto in our presence.

:

Muncipal Bldg., San Jose, 8/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P. I. /T/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

27 October, 1945. /8/ Charles C, Thompson
/T/ CHABLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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DIONISIO PARZ, after having been duly sworn, testified
at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Bantangas Province,
P. I., on 4 October 1945, as follows!

q Please state your full name, age, address and national-
ity.

A Dionisio Paes, 64 years old, Poblacion, San Jose, Bat-
angas Province, P, I., Mlipino.

¥hat is your occupation?
Carpenter.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can your whoreabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatmeat at the hands of the Jap-
anese?
Yes.

Please tell us in detall what happened.

On February 22, 1945, Thureday, 7:30 A. M., my grandson,
Victorino Paez, age 20; my son, Jose Paez, age 20, and
1isaw two Japanese north of our house, We hurriedly
left our house and went svuthward, my son and grandson

going first.

Hardly had I gone 15 meters, when I saw that they were
canght by six Japanese soldiers.  One soldier aimed his
rifle at me. I went to him and the six Japanese brought
the three of us to a place where they kept four bags of
unhusked rice, and one box of soap, about 100 meters
south of our house,

Here, two Japanese were left to guard us. I told my son
and grandeon to follow me, if I tried to escape. Then,
when the guards werenot looking at ue, I made signs to
my son and grandson, and I dashed for freedom. I ran
westward to the town, my son ran eastward. I did not see
where my grandson went. I heard three rifle shots in ny
direction, and I saw four Japanese running after my son
and shooting at him. However, I was not hit, and my seon,
I later learned, was not hit, either. That evening I
learned that the Japanese deft town.

— o T — e

The next mornming at about 8 o'clock, I looked -forc the
body of my grandson, presuming him to have been caught
and killed since he had not joined us. I did not see

him. About 7:30 A. M., Saturday, February 24, 1945, I
sav his body among those of 11 men, women and children
on the bank of Malaking Tubig River.

My grandeson had a wound from a sharp instrument, perhaps
a saber, on the left shoulder, and a big bayonet wound
on the abdomen. 8Some of his intestines wereprotruding
from the wound.

Bmeng the bodies I recogni,ed were: Sancho Atienza, age
about 50; Sixto Atienza, age about 32; Eulogio Atienza,
age 18; Iucita Atienza, age 27, who was pregnant; Leo-
pardo Atienza, sge 14; and five children, mostly suckling

babies, whose names I dodot know. USA. vs T yuki
S.A. omeyuki YAMASHITA
-29 - Prosecution :
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The next day, February 25, 1545, about 20 meters from
the bank of the river, where I saw the 11 men, women
and children. I found the body of Agapita Hidalgo, age
45. BShe, too, had been bayoneted.

Where were the baogles buriedl

My prandson was burted in the town uq?ory The ten
other bodies were buried in the dugout of the Atienza
family in Barrio Tayean.

Do you know the names of any of the Japanese who were
responsible for the massacre of these 11 people?
No.

Can you describe any of them!?

I cannot describe any of them, but I meet the Japan-
ese who captured my son, grandson, and I, I think I can
recognize them.

Can you describe the uniform of these Japanese who cap-
tured you?
They were moss-colored.

Can you describe their insignial?
Fo. I did not notice them.

Do you know to what unit they belonged?
No.

Have you anything else to add to your statement?

Q
A
Q
A
Q
A
Q
A

/8/ Dionisio Paex
/%/ DIONISIO PARZ
COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, DIONISIO PAEZ, being duly sworn on oath, state that I
had read to we and understood the tr anslation of the foregoing
transcription of my interrogation and all answers contained
therein, consisting of two (2) pages, are true to the best of
my knowledge and belief,

/8/ Dienisio Pasz
/T/ DIONISIO PARZ

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 27 day of October,
19485,

/8/ Allen H, Peoples

,!, ALLEN H, m. o‘pto’ CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF 8AN JOSE

I, ALYREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1369 Antipolo Street,
Sampaloc, Manila, P, I., being duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
lish to Tagalog and from Tagalog to English respectively,

"and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the fore-
going deposition containing two la) pages, to the witnese;
that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signa-
ture thereto.

fo) AEE-Coivas

Subscribed and sworn to before me thie 27 day of October,
1945,

/8/ Allen E, Peoples

/?/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachments

certi
CERILIEICAIE

We ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES

C. THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 4th day
of October, 1945, personally appeared before us DIONISIO PAEZ,
and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the forezoing answers to
the several questione set forth therein; that after his tes-
timony had been transcribed, the said DIONISIO PAEZ had read
to him by the said interpreter the same and affixed his sig-
nature thereto in our presence.

Municipal Bldg., San Jose, /8/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P. I, /®/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

27 October, 1945. /8] Charles C. Thompson
/7/ CEARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF 8AN JOSE

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1369 Antipolo Street,
Sampaloc, Manila, P. I., being duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
1ish to Tagalog and from Tagalog to English respectively,

' and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the fore-
going deposition containing two la) pages, to the witness;
that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signa-
ture thereto..

/8] Alfredo Cuevas
/®/ ALYEEDO CUEVAS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 27 day of October,
1945.

/8/ Allen E, Peoples

/?/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachments

certi
CERILIEILICALE

We ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES

C. THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 4th day
of October, 1945, personally appeared before us DIONISIO PAEZ,
and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the forezoing answers to
the several questions set forth therein; that after his tes-
timony had been transcribed, the said DIONISIO PAEZ had read
to him by the said interpreter the same and affixed his sig-
nature thereto in our presence.

Municipal Bldg., San Jose, /8/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P. I. |7/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., OAC

27 October, 1945. /8] Charles C. Thomeson
/7 CHARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC
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FAUSTO ATIENZA, after having been duly sworn, testified
at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province,
P.I., on 26 Ootober 1945, as follows;

Q Please state your full name, age, address and national-
ity.

A Fausto Atienza, 18 years old, Barrio Taysan, San Jose,
Batangas Province, P,.I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?®
Farmer .

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can your 'hereatzats in the fubure be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address,

pid you suffer any mistreatment at khe hands of the Jape
anese?

Yes. The Japanese forced me to labor for them and they
killed 11 members of my family.

Tell us all you know about it.

On February 22, 1945, six Japanese cam® to our house in
Barrio Taysan and took myself and three others = Jose
Silva, age 25; Buloglo Atienza, age 16 and Bmilio Atienza,
age 19 « to wark for them, They forced us to go from
house to house with them, They took palay - unhusked
rice = from the houses, and they forced us to carry the
palay to the munieipal building at San Jose. Only three
of us worked all day, as the Japanese freed Bulogio at

about 11 otclock in the morning of the m?py.

At about six o'clock in the afternoon I was able to re-
turn home, I found only three members of my family
there; Alejandria Atienza, age 2, my sister-in~law who
is now in Lucena, Tayabas and her two children, Rodolfo,
age 6 and Rosita, age 4. I asked Alejandria where the
other members of the family were, and she told me that
shortly after the four of us, whose names and ages are
mentioned already, left with the Japs, four other Japs
came to the house and ransacked it,

There they found a leaflet which an American plane had
dropped, announcing the landing of General MacArthur and
the United States forces on Leyte. The Japs took all
the persons in the house, 14 in all, lined them up out-
side, and marched them to'the school house in San Jose.
The men were taken behind the aschool house, while the
women and children were placed in the house of leoncio
Talag. They were gquestioned about the leaflet, butthey
knew only that the children found it in the yard after
it was dropped by an airplane, Then the Japs told them
that they were bad people, and began taking them one by
one from the house of leoncio Talag. About four o'clock
that afternoon, after all had been taken oyt of the house -
except Alejandria and her two children, thelfaps told

her that she could take the children and go houes

Ry
R

¢
-

When none of the other members of my femily returned, we
began looking for them about seven o'clock that evening,.
Since the Japanese were still in the area, we had to stay
hidden from them while we searched, and it was two days

VIHSVAVA Mméemo] &a -y'§ )
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after; February 24, 1945 when Jose Vergara, age 22;
Dionisio Paez, age 50; BEmilio Atienza, age 19 and I
found the bodies of ten members of my femily in the water
in the river at the back of the school building. They
were; my father, Sancho Atienza, age 40; my brother,
Sixto Atienza, age 25; my sister, Iucia Atienza, age 23;
my niece, Loreta de Silva, age 7; my niece, Brigida de
Silva, age l#; my brother, Bulogio Atienza, age 16; my
sister, Leonarda Atienza, age 12; my brother, Pedro
Atienza, age ll; my brother Marcelino Atienza, age 8 and
my sister Dionisia Atienza, age 4.

All those missing were found except the body of my moth=-
er, Agapita Hidalgo, age 38. However,next day, February
25, 1945, we found her body near the place where the oth-
ers were found; it was sulmerged in the water, and we
missed it when we found the others.

What did you do with those bodies?

We - Josp Vergara, age 22; Dionisio Paez, age 50; Bmnilio
Atienza, age 19; Leonardo Mendoza, age 50; Jose Lopez,
age 35; Alfredo Lopem, age 30; Florencio Lopez, age 21;
paniel Atienza, age 28; ten others, whose names I do not
recall, and I = removed the bodies from the river and
took them t& a place near qur house in Barrio Taysan,
San Jose and buried thems The bodies bore wounds on the
chest, shoulders, stomach and back from bayonets. Same
heads were almost severed, and the intestines of some
were sticking out. Several of the bodies were tied to=
gethers

Do you know any of the names of the Japanese who killed
the 11 members of your family? !

No, neither can I describe them because I 4id not see
thems I am positive, however, that they were Japanese
because of what my sister-in-law, Alejandria, told me
which was already mentioned here and because mass murder
of men, women and children was a specialty of the Japs.

Do you know the name of any of the Japanese who forced
you to carry palay?

No. That was the first time I saw them. The only thing
1 remember about them is that tiey wore non-descript
clothes.

Can you describe their insignia?
No. I think they did not have any insignia on.

Do you know the unit or organization they belonged to?
Noe.

Do you know what provoked the Japanese %o murder the 11

members of your family?
No. They were all peaceful residents of parrio Taysan,

San Jose, Batangas Provinces

Have you anything further to ddd to your statement?
No.

o) masAun
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PROVINCE OF BATANGAS g 8s
)

TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, FAUSTO ATIENZA, being duly sworn on oath, state that
T had read to me and understood the translation of the fore-
going transcription of my interrogation and all answers con-
tained therein, consisting of two (2) pages, are true to the
best of my knowledge and belief,

/8/ Fausto Atienza
/%/ " FAUSTO ATIENZA

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ¢ day of Nove
ember, 1945.

/s/ Allen H. Peoples e

/¢/ , Capts, CAC
Investighting Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment,

COMMONWEALTH OF THE mnm;
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS Ss

TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, Residing at 1433 Prddencio Street,
Sempaloc, Manila, P.I., being duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
lish to Tagalog and trom Tagalog to English respectively,
and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the
foregding deposfition containing two (2) pages, to the witness;
that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signae
ture thereto.

/8/ Alfredo Cuevas
/%/AIFH:DO CUEVAS

Subseribed and sworn to before medhis day of Nove
unber. 19!&5.

/Wﬂ_ "
/8 He PEOPLES, Capte, CAC

Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.
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CERTIEICATE

We, ALLEN H, PEOFLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES.
C. THOMBSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, cdrtify that on 26th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us FAUSTO ATIENZA,
and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the foregéing emawers
to the several questions set forth therein; that after his
testimony had been transcribed, the said FAUSTO ATIINZA Nad
read to him by the said interpreter the same and affixed his
signature thereto in our presence,

Munioipal Bldg., San Jose/S/ Allen He Peoples
Batangas Province, P.I. Vi H., PEOPLES, CAPT., CAC

l_mombor. 1945 /8/ Charles C. Thompson
/%/ CHARLES C. THOMBSON, Capt., TC
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DOMINICA M. MARALIT, after having been duly sworn, testi-
fied at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province,
P. I., on i October 1945, as follows;

Q Please state your full name, age, address and national-
ity.

A Dominica M. Maralit, 44 years old, Poblacion, San Jose,
Batangas Province, P.. I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Elementary school teachers.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can yoyr whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address,

pid you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Jap-
anese?

No, but my husband, Dr. Lorenzo Maralit, D.M.M,, was murdered
by the Japanese.

WilYyou please relate to us fully the incidents leading
to his mmrder? y

During the Japanese occupation, my husband, a physician,
treated profecsionally the Japanese because he was a
graduate of the Tokoyo Imperial University, and he could
speak Japanese, Beeause of these,together with the fact
that he was a paralytic, it was presumed that the Japan-
ese would not molest him, so he did not evacuate to the
barrio of Kalansayan with use.

On February 23, 1945, he visited us in Kalansayan, and
that was the last time I saw him alive.

On February 28, 1945, our maid, Cresenciena, I forgot her
family name, learned that there was a body of a man under
the bridge between Poblacion and Taysan. She went to the
wridge aud discovered the body of my husband, half of his
body in the water end a half on the goound, She went ime-
mediately to the barrio of Kalansayan to inform me about
it.

1 offered 28 cans of husked rice to Cirilo Japor and four
other men whose nemes I do not know, to get the body of
my husband and bury him in Kaldnsayane They took the body
from under the bridge and carried it to Kalansayan,which
is about two kilometers south, I saw the body and recog-
nized that it was his, He had a wound, possibly from a
bayonet, on the back which went through the chest, Cir-
ilo Japor and hic companions who removed my husbands body
fr der the bridge, told me that it was bound with
barbed wire to a bamboo pole. This 1 verified when I saw
the bodye. However, I was too grieved to pay close atten-
tion to all the details,

PaARORY
L o

Do you happen to know any of the Japancae who killed your
husband®?
No.

Do you know the names of any of the Japanese who used to
be treated by your husband?
No.

VAESVRVA: fudewoy e -y
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CERIIEICATE

We, ALLEN H, PEOFLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES.
0. THOMBSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, cértify that on 26th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us FAUSTO ATIENZA,
and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the foregéing anawers
to the several questions set forth therein; that after his
testimony had been transcribed, the said FAUSTO ATIENZA had
read to him by the said interpreter the same and affixed his
signature thereto in our presence,

Munioipal Bldg., Sen Jose/2/ Allen He Peoples iy
Batangas Province, P.I. /Y XILEN H. PEOPLES, OAPT., CAC

! ddm. 1945 /8/ Charles C. Thompson
/%/ CHARLES C, THOMPSON, Capt., TC
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DOMINICA M, MARALIT, after having been duly sworn, testi-
fied at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province,
P. I., On 4 October 1945, as follows;

Q rlme state your full name, age, address and national-

- t’.

A pominica M. Maralit, 4J years old, Poblacion, San Jose,
Batangas Province, P.. I., Filipino,

What is your occupation?
Elementary school teacher,

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if
not, how can yoyr whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

pid you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Jap-
ancse?

No, but my husband, Dr. Lorenzo Maralit, D.M.M,, was murdered
by the Japanese,

Wil)Yyou please relate to us fully the incidents leading
to his mmrder? o

During the Japanese occupation, my husband, a physician,
treated profecsionally the Japanese because he was a
graduate of the Tokoyo Imperial University, and he could
speak Japanese, Beeause of these,together with the fact
that he was a paralytic, it was presumed that the Japan-
ese would not molest him, so he did not evacuate to the
barrio of Kalansayan with use.

On February 23, 1945, he visited us in Ralanuyan.. and
that was the last fime I saw him alive,

On February 28, 1945, our maid, Cresenciana, I forgot her
femily name, learned that there was a body of a man under
the bridge between Poblacion and Taysan, She went to the
ywridge and discovered the body of my husband, half of his
body in the water and a half on the goound., She went ime
mediately to the barrio of Kalansayan to inform me about
it.

1 offered 28 cans of husked rice to Cirilo Japor and four
other men whose names I do not know, to get the body of
my husband and bury him in Kaldnsayans They took the body
fram under the bridge and carried it to Kalansayan,which
is about two kilometers south. I saw the body and recog-
nized that it was his, He had a wound, possibly from a
bayonet, on the back which went through the chest. Cir-
ilo Japor and his companions who removed my husbands body

under the bridge, told me that it was bound with
barbed wire to a bamboo pole. This 1L verified when I saw
the body, However, I was too grieved to pay close atten-
tion to all the details,

Do you happen to know any of the Japancse who killed your
husband?®
No.

Do you know the names of any of the Japanese who used to
be treated by your husband?
No.

Vi
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Can you describe any of them?

Aside fram the fact that they wors greenish.khaki uni-
forms, I cannot describe those Japanese, To me they all
looked alike.

Do you know what unit they belonged to?
NO«

Have you anything further to add to your statement?
No.

/8/ Dominica M,. Maralit
/t/ “DOMINICA M. MARALIT

COMMONWEALTH OF mmurmlm;

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ) S8

)
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )

I, DOMINICA M. MARALIT, being duly sworn on oath, state
that I have read and understood the foregéing transcription
of my interrogation and all answers contained therein, con=
sisting of two (2) pages, are true to the best of my know-
ledge and belief,

/8/ Dominica M. Maralit
/ t/DOMINICA M. MARALIT

Subscribed and sworn to before me thiuﬁ day of October,
1945.

/s/ Allen H. Peoples

/t/ AIL H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachmente

CERIIEICATE

We, ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C.
THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 4th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us DOMIIICA M. MAR®
ALIT, and gave the foregoing answers to the several questions
set farth; that after her testiony had been transcribed, the
said DOMINICA M, MARALIT read the same and affixed her sig-
nature thereto in our presences

Municipal Building, San Jose /s/ Allen H. Peoples
patangas Province, P.I. t/ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

a? 2 October, 1945. /s/ Charles C. Thompson
’ CHARLES C, THOIPSON, Capt., TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COFY
el
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Can you describe any of them?

Aside fram the fact that they wors greenish.khaki uni-
forms, I cannot describe those Japanese, To me they all
looked alike.

Do you know what unit they belonged to?
No.

Have you anything further to add to your statement?
No.

/8/ Dominica M. Maralit
/t/ “DOMINICA M., MARALIT

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ) 88

TOWN OF SAN JOSE ;

I, DOMINICA M, MARALIT, being duly sworn on oath, state
that I have read and understood the foregéing transcription
of my interrogation and all answers contained therein, cone
sisting of two (2) pages, are true to the best of my know=
ledge and belief,

/s/ Dominica M. Maralit
/ t/DOMINICA M. MARALIT

Subscribed and sworn to before me m.,g'_f day of October,
1945.

/8/ Allen H. Peoples

/t/ ALLa H, PEOPLES, Capte, CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachments

CERIIEICATIE

We, ALLEN H. PEOPIE. mpt.. °2h952h. GLG, and CHARLES C,
THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 4th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us DOMINICA M. MAR®
ALIT, and gave the foregoing answers to the several questions
set forth; that after her testiuony had been transcribed, the
said DOMINICA M., MARALIT read the same cnd affixed her sig-
nature thereto in our presence.

Junicipal Building, San Jose,/8/ Allen He Peoples
patangas Province, P,I. t/ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capte., CAC

oz 2 October, 1945. /s/ Charles C. Thampson
/ CHARLES C, THOIPSON, Capte, TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COFY
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GREGORIO ILAO, after having been duly sworn, testified
at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Provinee,
P.I. on 4 October 1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nation-
ality.

A Gregorio Ilao, 54 years old, Barrio Sabang, San Jose,
‘Batangas Province, P,I, Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Farmer, and barrio lieutenant of Sa ‘g, San Jose,

Do you intend to rmmain at your present address, and if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascere
tained®

I intend to remain at my present Address,

Do you know of any atrocity committed by the Japanese in
the barrio of Sabang, San Jose, Batangas Province, P*I.,
on or about March 4, 1945%

Yes.

will you please tell us in detail what happened?

On March 4, 1945, the Japanese left Sabang. Herminia
Maquinto, age 27; Maria Moralesy age 35; Felisa Morales,
age 30; Bmeteria Salud, age 40, and I went to the house
of Herminia Maquinto at Sabang.

There we saw the bodies of Esteban Perada, age 40, hus-
band of Maria Morales; Melecio Patron, age 32, husband
of Herminia Maquintos Hilarion Magracia, age L0, husband
of Felisa Morales, and Regalado Ilao, son of BEmeteria
Salud, All had been bayonetéd, with wounds on the back
which went through the chests All, except Regalado Ilaw,
were tied together with their hands behind their backs.
We buried these four bodies in the dugout near the house
of Herminia Magquinto in Sabang.

- S e e

Do you know the names of any of the Japanese responsible
for the Massacre of these four persons?

1 did not actually see who killed these four. However,
I know the mame of one of the Japanese who was in Sabang
during the time of the massacre. Ho was called Capt..
Paba, He was about 5 feet 4 inches tall, heavy build,
about 150 pounds, 35 yeers old, short-cropped hair, I
believe he had two gold teeth in front, smooth shaven,
good looking, wore gold-rimmed glasses, slit eyes of
trown color, fair complexion and always wore a saber,
When I last saw him, he was with denim trousers and short-
sleeved blue poplin shirt.

1
1
B

.

i R

Can you describe any other Japanese who were in Sabang
during the massacre of these four civilians?

No.

can you describe their insignia?
No,

Do you know to what unit they belonged to}ns"" w Tomeyuki YAMASHITA §

No»
"efense—
Bantfen. Exhibit No,g2 87/

/s/ 6.1,
-3
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Have you anything further to add to this statement?
Nos

/-}mmma
/t/ GREGORIO ILAO
COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILPPINES)

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, GREGORIO ILAO, Being duly sworn on oath, state that
I had read to me and understood the translation of the fore-
going transcription of my interrogation and all answers con-
tained therein, consisting of two (2) pages, are true to the
best of my knowledge and belief.

/8/ egorio Ilao
/t/” GREGORIO ILAO

Subscribed and sworn to before me this& 2 day of Octe
ober, 1945. §

#s/ Allen oples
/t/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, CApte, CAC

Investigating 0fficer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachmentf

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudencio Street,
Sempaloc, Manila,P,I., .being duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
lish to Tagalog and fram Tagalog to English respectively,
and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the
foregoing deposition containing two (2) pages, to the witnessg
that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signa-

ture thereto.
/s/ redo Cuevas
/t/” ALFREDO CUEVAS

Subscribed and sworn to before me thisgi day of Oct-
bber, 1945. 4

/s/ Allen H. Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H. PEOFLES, C:.pt., CAC
Investizating Officer, War Crimes
Investingating Detachment,

-39 =
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CERTIEICATE

We, ATLEN H, PEOFLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C,
THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 4th day of
October, 1945, perscnally appeared before us GREGORIO ILAO,
and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the foregoing answers to
the several questions set forth therein; that after his testi-
mony had been transcribed, the said CREGORIO ILAO had read to
him by the said interpreter the same and affixed his signature
thereto in our presence,

Mmunicipal Bldg, Sen Jose, /s/ _Allen H. Peoples
patangas Province, P,I, /t/ ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

gﬁ October, 191;.5; /s/ _Charles C. Thompson
/t/ ~CHARLES C, THOLIPSON, Capte,

A CERTIFIED TRUE COFY
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JOSEFA AGUILA, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province, P.I., on 15 October
1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Josefa Aguila, 37 years old, Barrio Taysan, San Jose, Batangas
Provincey; P.I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Housekeeper.

Do you int o remain at your present address, and if not, how
can your Lbouts in the future be ascertained?

I intend in at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese?
Yen.

Please relate fully what happened.
Sunday, March 18, 1945, at about six o'clock in the afternoon,
we were in the house of my brother-in-law, Arcadio Mercado, age 65.

PO PO P> © PO

Three Jepanese went upstairs, two atayed on the stairs and one

came inside and said something in Japanese. I told him we had

done nothing. He aimed the bayonet at me. I took hold of it to
ward off the thrust. My sister, Rosario Aguila, age 50, grabbed

me and pulled me away. Then the Japanese rushed at me and bayoneted
me once below the left nipple and twice on the buttocks, once on
eachs I lost consciousness.

When I revived I found myself being carried by my nephew, Jose
Mercado, age 30, to his house. However, I was still too dazed to
know what was going around me.

Who were with you in the house of your brother-in-law?

Genoveva Custodio, age 85; my sister, Rosario Aguila, age 50; my
brother-in-law, Arcadio Mercado, age 65; my nieces, Felicidad
Mercado, age 1l and Pacita Mercado, age 7. Genoveva Custodio,

my sister and my brother-in-law died, all from bayonet wounds;

my nieces both survived, each with a bayonet wound on the left knee.

Do you know the nemes of the three Japanese who went to your
brother-in-law's house on March 18, 1945%
No, that was the first time I saw them.

Can you describe any of them?.

I was too frightened to give a detailed personal description of
any of them. I noticed, however, that they wore khaki uniforms and
had their helmets camouflaged with leaves.

Can you describe their insignia?
Noe.

Do you know to what unit they belonged?
Noe.
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Q I hand you Exhibit *G* and ask you what it is.

A It is a picture of me showing the scar from a bayonet wound under
the left breast inflicted by the Jepanese on March 18, 1945.

Q Have you anything else to add to this statement?
A No.

/8/ Josept Aguila
/t/ TOSEFA AGUIIA

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIFPINES)

)
PROVINCE QF BATANGAS i 88
TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, JOSEFA AGUIIA, being duly sworn on oath, state that I had read
to me and understood the translation of the foregoing transcription
of my interrogation and all answers contained therein, consisting of
two (2) pages, are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

/8/ Josefa Aguila
/t/ JOSEFA AGUILA

Subscribed apd sworn to before me this lst day of November, 1945.

.
/8/ Allen H. Peoples
/t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Cgt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIFPPINES

)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS isa
)

TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudencio Street, Sampaloc,
Menila, P.I., being duly sworn on oath, state that I truly translated
the questions and answers given from English to Tagalog and from
Tagalog to English respectively, and that after being transcribed, I
truly translated the forégoing deposition containing two (2) pages,
to the witness; that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed her
signature thereto.

/8/ Alfredo Cuevas
/t/ ALFREDO CUEVAS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this lst day of November, 1945.

/8/ Allen H, Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.
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CERIIEICAZE

We, ALLEN H. PEOPLES, w.’ 02#952#. CAC, and CHARLES C. THOMPSON,
Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on 15th day of October, 1945, per-
scnally appeared before us JOSEFA AGUILA, and according to ALFREDO
CUEVAS, gave the foregoing answers to the severel Questions set forth
therein; that after her testimony had been transcribed, the said
JOSEFA AGUILA had read to her by the said interpreter the same and
affixed her signature thereto in our presence.

Municipal Bldg., San Jose, /s/ Allen H., Peoples
Batangas Province, P.I. /%/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

st November, 1945 o/ Charles C. Thompson .
/%/ CHARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC

-w-
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JOSE MERGADO, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province, P.I., on 6 October
1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Jose Mercado, 30 years old, Barrio Banaybanay I, San Jose, Batangas
Province, P.I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Merchant.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not, where
can your whereabouts in the future be ascertained?

The mayor of the municipality of San Jose, Batangas Province will
always know my whereabouts. I will leave him my address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese on or
about March 18, 19457

I was not mistreated myself, but three members of my femily were
killed and three others wounded by the Jgpanese at that time.

Will you relate fully the events that occurred in Banaybanay I

on that date as you remember it, regarding the mistreatment of these
8ix members of your family.

One afternoon, about six o'clock on March 18, 1945, the front line
Japanese soldiers passed on the street at the gate of my home in
Banaybanay I. There were ten Japanese including an officer.

These ten stopped near our gate and went into our yaru. My grand-
mother, Genoveva Custodio, age 85, went downstairs to urinate.

The officer then ordered his men to go away which they all did
except one who was left behind. My grandmother who had a poor sight
called this Japanese to come to her, thinking perhaps that he was
one of her grandchildren. The Japanese called his companions. My
grandmother then realized her mistake. She ran upstairs and locked
the door behind here

Three Japanese soldisrs went up the stairs and forced the door open.
I heard my mother begged the Japeanese not to kill them - my mother,
Rosario Aguila, age 50; my father, Arcadio Mercado, age 65; my
grandmother, Genoveva Custodio, age 85; my aunt Josefa Aguila, age
37; my sisters Felicidad and Pacita Mercado, age 1) and 7 respec-
tively, - because they had done nothing.

Then I heard screams. I heard my father's scream first. It
suddenly stopped. I surmised my father died immediately. I heard
my mother's screams next. Then I could no longer distinguish the
screams because there were many of them. Then everything became
quiet. I think it was half an hour after the three Japanese went
into the house. The Jepanese left thinking all those six persons
in the house were dead.

About eight o'clock same day, I went to my father's house. I
found him, my mother and my grandmother all dead. My father who
was dead had one bayonet wound below the left nipple; my mother
had three bayonet wounds, one on the breast and two below the
left nipple; my grandmother had one bayonet wound on the abdomen.

A TM.
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JOSE MERGADO, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
» Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Provinee, P.I., on 6 October
1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Jose Mercado, 30 years old, Barrio Banaybanay I, San Jose, Batangas
Province, P.I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Merchant.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not, where
can your whereabouts in the future be ascertained?

The mayor of the municipality of San Jose, Batangas Province will
always know my whereabouts. I will leave him my address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese on or
about March 18, 19457

I was not mistreated myself, but three members of my family were
killed and three others wounded by the Jgpanese at that time.

¥Will you relate fully the events that occurred in Banaybanay I

on that date as you remember it, regarding the mistreatment of these
six members of your family.

One afternoon, about six o'clock on March 18, 1945, the front line
Japanese soldiers passed on the street at the gate of my home in
Banaybanay I. There were ten Japanese including an officer.

These ten stopped near our gate and went into our yaru. My grand-
mother, Genoveva Custodio, age 85, went downstairs to urinate.

The officer then ordered his men to go away which they all did
except one who was left behind. My grandmother who had a poor sight
called this Japanese to come to her, thinking perhaps that he was
one of her grandchildren. The Jepanese called his companions. My
grandmother then realized her mistake. She ran upstairs and locked
the door behind her,

Three Japanese soldigrs went up the stairs and forced the door open.
I heard my mother begged the Japanese not to kill them - my mother,
Rosario Aguila, age 50; my father, Arcadio Mercado, age 65; my
grandmother, Genoveva Custodio, age 85; my aunt Josefa Aguila, age
37; my sisters Felicided and Pacita Mercado, age 14 and 7 respec-
tively, =~ because they had done nothing.

Then I heard screams. I heard my father's scream first. It
suddenly stopped. I surmised my father died immediately. I heard
my mother's screams next. Then I could no longer distinguish the
screams because there were many of them, Then everything became
quiet. I think it was half an hour after the three Japanese went
into the house. The Jepanese left thinking all those six persons
in the house were dead.

About eight o'clock same day, I went to my father's house. I
found him, my mother and my grandmother all dead. My father who
was dead had one bayonet wound below the left nipple; my mother
had three bayonet wounds, one on the breast and two below the
left nipple; my grandmother had one bayonet wound on the abdomen.

A T.M.
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CERIIXIICAIE

We, ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C. THOMPSON,
Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on 15th day of October, 1945, per-
smally appeared before us JOSEFA AGUILA, and according to ALFREDO
CUEVAS, gave the foregoing answers to the several Questions set forth
therein; that after her testimony had been transcribed, the said
JOSEFA AGUILA had read to her by the said interpreter the same and
affixed her signature thereto in our presence.

Minicipal Bldg., San Jose, /-/ Allen H, Peoples
Bltanau Province, P.I1. v ALLEN H. mmo wo. CAC

1st November, 1945

/8/
/%/ CHARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC
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JOSE MERGADO, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Municipal Building of Sean Jose, Batangas Provinece, P.I., on 6 October
1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Jose Mercado, 30 years old, Barrio Banaybanay I, San Jose, Batangas
Province, P.I., Filipino.

What is your oeccupation?
Merchant.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not, where
can your whereabouts in the future be ascertained?

The mayor of the municipality of 8an Jose, Batangas Province will
always know my whereabouts. I will leave him my address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese on or
about March 18, 1945?

I was not mistreated myself, but three members of my family were
killed and three others wounded by the Japanese at that time.

Will you relate fully the events that occurred in Banaybanay I

on that date as you remember it, regarding the mistreatment of these
8ix members of your family.

One afternoon, about six o'clock on March 18, 1945, the front line
Japanese soldiers passed on the street at the gate of my home in
Banaybanay I. There were ten Japanese including an officer.

These ten stopped near our gate and went into our yard, My grand-
mother, Genoveva Custodio, age 85, went downstairs to urinate.

The officer then ordered his men to go away which they all did
except one who was left behind. My grandmother who had a poor sight
called this Japanese to come to her, thinking perhaps that he was
one of her grandchildren. The Japanese called his companions. My
grandmother then realized her mistake. She ran upstairs and locked
the door behind here

Three Japanese soldigrs went up the stairs and forced the door open.
I heard my mother begged the Japanese not to kill them - my mother,
Rosario Aguila, age 50; my father, Arcadio Mercado, age 65; my
grandmother, Genoveva Custodio, age 85; my aunt Josefa Aguila, age
37; my sisters Felicided and Pacita Mercado, age 14 and 7 respec-
tively, = because they had done nothing.

Then I heard screams. I heard my father's scream first. It
suddenly stopped. I surmised my father died immediately. I heard
my mother's screams next. Then I could no longer distinguish the
screams because there were many of them. Then everything became
quiet. I think it was half an hour after the three Japanese went
into the house. The Jepanese left thinking all those six persons
in the house were dead.

About eight o'clock same day, I went to my father's house. I
found him, my mother and my grandmother all dead. My father who
was dead had one bayonet wound below the left nipple; my mother
had three bayonet wounds, one on the breast and two below the
left nipple; my grandmother had one bayonet wound on the abdomen.

A T.M.
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aunt and my two al stere were all wounded but alive, My aunt had
bayonet wounds, one below the left nipple and two on the buttocks,
each; my sisters had bayonet wounds, one each on the left
I took these three wounded to my house. These three were
ted by the Americans in the market of San Jose, Batangas Province.

What d4d you do with the three dead bodies?
I had no one to help me bury them. It was about 15 days afterwards
that I buried them in our backyard. I burned my father's house.

Do you know the names of any of the ten Japanese you saw entered
your father's yard on March 18, 19457
No.

Can you describe any of them?

1 can describe only the officer. He wore a saber. He was about

six feet tall, weighed about 165 pounds, wore a helmet so I cannot
tell anything about his hair, wore no glasses, was fair complexioned,
had high-bridged nose and ware a beard,

How do you know that he was an officer?
Booauuhewmanberandsmdtoboinchuanorthom.

Do you know to what unit or organization they belonged to?
No.

Can you describe their insignia?
No.

Do you know what provoked those Japanese to do this to the members
of your family?
No, we were all peaceful citizens.

Q
A
Q
A
Q
A
Q
A

/8/ Jose Mercado
/t/ TOSE MERCADO

COMMONWEALTH OF THE m—aurpmm;

PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ) ss

)
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )

I, JOSE MERCADO, being duly sworn on oath, state that I have read
end understood the foregoing transcription of my interrogation and all
answers contained therein, consisting of two (2) pages, are true to
the best of my knowledge and belief.

/6 / Jose Mercado
A/ JOSE MERCADO

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 27 day of October, 1945.

/8/ Allen H. Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment
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CERTIFICATE

We, AILLEN H. PEQL!S. Gmt-. 0&9.524" CAC, and CHARIES C. Tm.
Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on the 6th day of October, 1945,
personally appeared before us JOSE MERCADO, and gave the foregoing
answers to the several questions set forth; that after his testimony
had been transcribed, the said JOSE MERCADO read the same and affixed
his signature thereto in our presence.

Municipal Bldg., San Jose /8/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P.I. /t/ ALLEN H. FEOPLES, Capt., CAC

/8/ Charles C. ThompsoD—
ﬂ October, 19![-5- h/ CHARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC

A CERTIFIED TRUE COFY:
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SOFIA MOOG, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Municipal Buidding of San Jose, Batangas Province, P.I., on 15 October
1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Sofia Moog, 22 years old, Barrio Taysan, San Jose, Batangas Province,
P.1., rllipimo

What is your occupation?
Housekeeper.,

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not, where
can your whereabouts in the future be ascertained?
I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese?
Yen.

Will you please relate fully how it happened?

On March 18, 1945, at about 8130 o'clock in the morning, just after
we had breakfasted at the house of Nicomedes Ona, I saw about 40
Japanese coming. We were 25 persons altogether. Six of us ran
away when they saw the Japanese. They were, Florencio Austria, age
20, my brother-in-law; my two brothers, Antonio Moog, age 15, and
Francisco Moog, age 5; my sister, Rosenda Moog, age 20; Pedro
Atienza, age 18 and Benecio Lorzano, age 15.

o PO > O PO

Three Japanese came inside the gate, the rest were left outside
guarding the premises. One of these Japanese caught Florencio
Austria, while the two others began bayoneting the men. One man
who was bayoneted, whose name I do not know, fell near Florencio
Austria and the Japanese holding the latter, turned., Florencio then
freed himself fram the Japamese and escaped. Then the rest of the
Jemnese came into the yard and began bayoneting the people they
found there. I saw my father, Luis Moog, age 50, and my mother,
Dorotea de Moog, age 45, bayoneted. Ly mother received a bayonet
wound on the left chest and died immediately. My father was
beyoneted four times, once on the upper arm, once on the neck and
twice on the abdomen. One Japanese bayoneted me and wounded me

on the left hip. I ran away and managed to escape. There were
dlready nine persons who were bayoneted when I escaped. These nine
persons were, my father, Luis Moog, age 50; my mother, Dorotea de
Moog, age 45; Nicomedes Ona, age 60; Maria Ona, age 30; Encarnacion
Ona, age 37; Jose Ona, age 28; Rogelio Ona, age 5; Eufemia Ona,

age 37 and Concepcion Atienza, age 12.

A

b

L=

I did not go back to that house any more. I heard fram Mr. Saturnino
lorzeno that he buried the bodies of my father and mother in their

dugout .

‘l.

T

Do you know the names of any of these 4O Japanese that you saw?
No, that was the first time I saw them.

T T
T T

Can you describe any of them?
Three of the 40 Japanese were with sabers, the rest were with fixed
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SOFIA MOOG, after having been duly sworn, testified at the
Municipal Buidding of San Jose, Batangas Province, P.I., on 15 October
1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality.
A Sofia Moog, 22 years old, Barrio Taysan, San Jose, Batangas Province,
P.I., Filipino,

What is your occupation?
Housekeeper.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, and if not, where
can your whereabouts in the future be ascertained?
I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the Japanese?
Yes.

Will you please relate fully how it happened?

On March 18, 1945, at about 8130 o'clock in the morning, just after
we had breakfasted at the house of Nicomedes Ona, I saw about 40
Japanese coming. We were 25 persons altogether. Six of us ran
away when they saw the Japanese. They were, Florencio Austria, age
20, my brother-in-law; my two brothers, Antonio Moog, age 15, and
Francisco Moog, age 5; my sister, Rosenda Moog, age 20; Pedro
Atienza, age 18 and Benecio Lorzano, age 15.

o PO » © PO

Three Japanese came inside the gate, the rest were left outside
guarding the premises. One of these Japanese caught Florencio
Austria, while the two others began bayoneting the men. One man
who was bayoneted, whose name I do not know, fell near Florencio
Austria and the Japanese holding the latter, turned. Florencio then
freed himself fram the Japmese and escaped. Then the rest of the
Jgmnese came into the yard and began bayoneting the people they
found there. I saw my father, Luis Moog, age 50, and my mother,
Dorotea de Moog, age 45, bayoneted. Ly mother received a bayonet
wound on the left chest and died immediately. My father was
beyoneted four times, once on the upper arm, once on the neck and
twice on the abdomen. Ome Japanese bayoneted me and wounded me

on the left hip. I ran away and managed to escape. There were
dlready nine persons who were bayoneted when I escaped. These nine
persons were, my father, Luis Moog, age 50; my mother, Dorotea de
Moog, age 45; Nicomedes Ona, age 60; Maria Ona, age 30; Encarnacion
Ona, age 37; Jose Ona, age 28; Rogelio Ona, age 5; Eufemia Ona,

age 37 and Concepcion Atienza, age 12,

I did not go back to that house any more. I heard from Mr. Saturnino
Lorzano that he buried the bodies of my father and mother in their

dugout «

Q Do you know the names of any of these 40 Japanese that you saw?
A No, that was the first time I saw them.

Q Can you describe any of them?
A Three of the 40 Japanese were with sabers, the rest were with fixed
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bayonets. These three used the sabers for thrusting at the victims.
I think all the 4O Japanese had at least a week's growth of beard on
their faces. They weére camouflaged with branches and leaves. I
cannot give detailed personal description of any of them, because I
was too frightened to notice details.

What was the color of their uniforms?
lMoss~colored.

Can you describe their insignia?
No, I said I was too frightened to notice such details.

Do you know to what unit or organization they belonged?
No.

Do you know what provoked the Japanese to bayonet these people?
No, we were all psaceful people.

I hand you Exhibit *E" and asked you what it is,

It is a pictufe of me showing tke scar on my left hip, from a bayonet
wound inflicted by the Japanese on March 18, 1945, in San Jose, Batangas
Prmm.' P.I.

Have you anything more to add to your statement?

No.

/s/ Sofia Moog
/t/ SOFIA NOOG

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIFPINES

TONN OF SAl JOSE

)

)
PROVINCE OF BA' ANGAS ; Ss

)

I, SOFIA MOOG, being duly sworn on oath, state that I had read to

me and understood the translation of the foregoing transcription of my
interrogatio: and all answers contained therein, consisting of two (2)
pages, are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

/s/ Sofia Moog
/t/ SOFIA MOOG

Subscribed and sworn to before me this lst day of November, 1945.

/8/A1) . 1

/t/ALLEN H. PEOPIES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE rmmnmg

FROVINCE OF BATANGAS ) ss

TOWN OF SAN JOSE g

I, ALFREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1433 Prudencio Street, Sampaloec,
Menila, P.I., being duly sworn on oath, state that I truly translated
the questions and answers given from English to Tagalog and from Tagalog
to English respectively, and that after being transcribed, I truly trans-
lated the foregoing depcsition containing two (2) pages, to the witness;
that the witness thereupon in my presence affi.ed her signature thereto.

/8/,
/t/ALFREDO CUEVAS

Subscrilea and sworn to before me this lst day of November, 19@5.

A/

Allen H, Peoples
/t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

CERIIEICAIE

We, ALIEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES C. THOMPSON,
Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on 15th day of October, 1945, person=-
ally ap eared before us SOFIA NOOG, and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS,
gave the foregoing answers to the several questions set forth therein;
that after her testimony had been transcribed, the said SOFIA MOOG had
read to her by the said interpreter the same and affixed her signature
thereto in our presence.

Municipal Bldg., San Jose, /e/ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P.I. /t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

lst November, 1945. /8/ Charles C. Th
/t/ CHARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC

The following witness having been interrogated by the Investigator-
Examiners possesses knowledge of the facts set forth in the above statement:

Name Age Address Nationality

Florencio Austria Taysan, San Jose Bat- Filipino
angas Province, P.Il.

- 49 -
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ROSENDA MOOG, after having been duly sworn testified at San
goig, Batangas Province, Luzon, P. I., on 30 October, 1945 as
ollows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and nationality?
A Rosenda Moog, 20 years old, Taysan, San Jose, Batangas
Province, Fiiipino.

What is your occupation?
Housekeeper,

Do you intend to remain at vour present address?
Yes, I do.

Did you suffer any mistreatment in the hands of the Ja-
panese? If so, please relate it,

Yes, On March 18, 1945, at about 8:30 in the morning, Jjust
after we, 25 persons in all, had taken our breakfast at the
house of Nicomedes Ona, I saw about 40 Japanese soldiers
coming, The said 40 Japanese woldiers came directly to

the house where we were staying and encircled the house. I
was one of the six persons who ran away as soon as we saw
the Japanese coming, I was bayoneted when I pass the encir-
clement of the Japanese soldiers, the bayonet passing
through my right thigh to the back, I was carrying my two
year old son in my arms when I was hit and since I was con=-
cerned of his safety I continued to run even after beirg
hit by the Japanese. I ran straight to our house in Banay-
banay II and upon reaching it, I told the rest of my fami-
ly of what happened. We 1mme&1ately packed the few belong=-
ings that we could carry and then went to Taal Volcano. We
stayed there for 36 hours while my wound was tended by a
doctor from our barrio who happened to be in the same place.

Were there no Japanese soldiers in Taal Volec:ino?

No, there were no Japanese in Taal Volcano. We stayed
there for 1} days until the Americans who were already in
Lemery, Batangas Province took us from Taal Volcano, and
brough% us to their lines,

Do you know the names of any of this 40 Japanese soldiers
that you saw?
No sir, that was the first time I saw them.

Can you describe any of them?

They were attired in Japanese uniforms while some were in
civilian clothes, I did not notice their uniforms very
much as we ran as 8oon as we saw them coming,

Can you describe their insignia?
No, as I said I was too frightened to notice it.

Do you know to what unit or organization they belonged?
No, I do not know sir.

Do you have any idea what provoked the Japanese to bayonet
you and the rest of tre other people?

No sir, I have no idea why they bayoneted us. We were
peaceful people,

_&M
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Q I hand you Exhibit F and ask you what it is.

A It is a photograph of myself showing a scar on my back and
right hip from bayonet wounds inflicted by the Japanese on
me on 18 March, 1945 in San Jose, Batangas Province.

Nave you anything further to add to your statement?
No sir, I have nothing more to add.

ViZam e

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES ;
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS ; 88
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )

I, ROSANDA MOOG, being duly sworn on oath, state that I had
read to me and understood the translation of the foregoing
transcription of my interrogation and all answers contained
therein, consisting of two pages, are true to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

da
0 MO

i 5§ubscr1bed and swoon to before me this lst day of November,
945.

%}{. S, capt.,CAC,

Investigating Of%icer
War Crimes Investigating
Detachment

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES. ;
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS g 8s
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )

I, GUILLERMO F. MARIANO, residing at 96 Loreto, Sampaloc,
Manila, being duly sworn on oath, state that I truiy trans-
lated %he questions and answers given from English to Taga=-
log and from Tagalog to English respectively, and that after
being transeribed, I truly translated the foregoing deposition
containing two pages, to the witness; that the witness there~
upon in my presence affixed her signature thereto.

uillermo ¥, Maria
/t/ GUILLERMO F. MARIANO
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1945§ublor1bed and sworn to before me this lst day of November,

ATLEN EH o F ROP LES apt.'uc'
Investigating Officer

War Crimes Investigating
Detachment

ST i AT~ -

CERIIEICAIE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., CAC ASN 0249524, Investigating
Officer, War Crimes Investigating Deiachment . and CHARLES C.
THOMPSOR, Capt.,TC, ASN 01000484, Investigating Officer, War
Crimes Investigating Detachment, certify that on 30th day of
October 1945, personally appeared before us ROSENDA MOOG, and
according to GUILLERMO F., MARIANO, gave the foregoing answers

to the several questions set fortﬁ therein; that after her
testimony had been transcribed, the sald R SENDA MOOG had ‘read
to her by the said interpreter the same and affixed her signa-
ture thereto in our presance.

L CELYEP ety 8

San Jose, Batangas All e

Province, Luzon, P. I. » PEO Capt., CAC,
Investigating Of%icer, War Crimes

Investigating Detachment.

B
|

A
vl

_:ijg

lst November 1945 /S/ ghaﬁles C, Thompson
CHARLL: C. TEOMPSON, Capt., TC.

Investigating Ofiicer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.
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SATURNINO LORZANO, after having been duly sworn, testi-
fied at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Pro=-
vince, P. 1., on 6 October 1945, as follows:

Q Please state your full name, age, address and national-

Yo
A Saturnino lorzano, 38 years old, Barrio Banaybanay II,
San Jose, Batangas Province, P. I., Filipino.

What is your occupation?
Merchant.

Do you intend to remain at your present address, And 1if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hands of the
Japanese?

No, but I lost my wife, Encarnacion Ona, age 38 and one
child, Nelia Lorzano, age 6.

Please tell us exactly what happened relating to the
killing of vour wife and child.

About el ht o'clock in the morning of March 18, 1945, I
went from the house of my father-in-law, Nicomedes Ona,
age 60, in Banaybanay II, San Jose, Batangas Province
to get some food for my family. A£ about nine o'clocﬁ
that same morning, I met someone, whose name I do not
now remember, who told me that the Japanese were xill=-
ing my family. I decided to get a companion and go
back to my father-in-law's house. I found one Perfecto
Villafando, age 27. Ve, two, went to the house of my
father-in-law which 1is about 14 kilometers west of the
National.Road. I arrived at the house at about 9:30 o'~
clock same morning.

I saw 14 persons, nine in the house and five beneath the
house. They were all bavoneted to death. The nine dead
persons in the house were : my father, Luis Moog, age

50; mv mother, Dorotea de Moog, age 45; Nicomedes Ona,
age 60; Maria Ona, age 30; Encarnacion Ona, my wife, age
37; Consolacion Atienza, age 223 Jose Ona, age 28; Roge~
1lio Ona, age 5 and Eufemia Ona, age 37. %he five dead
persons under the house were: ILucinda Ona, age 50; Con-
chita Atienza, age 14; Regina Ona, age 50; Nelia Lorzano,
my six-year oid daughter and Librada Ona, age 7.

About two o'clock in the afternoon of that same day, Per=-
fecto Villfando and I buried nine bodies, whose names

and ages are among chose I already mentioned, in our
dugout. The rest were buried by their relatives in their
respective dugouts.

There are five survivors of this massacre. They are
Sofia Moog, age 23; Rosenda Moog, age 20: Paciano Hernan=-
dez, age 5; Catalina Endaya, age °0 and Jaime Lorzano,

age }. They are all from Barrio Baray banay I*, San Jose,
Batangas Province, P. 1., and of Filivino nationality.

Do you know the names of any of the Japnanese responsible
for this massacref?

/s/ S. L,
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No, 1 was not an actual witness to the massacre,

Do you know the unit or organization they belonged to?
No, as I have dlready said, I was not an actual wit-
‘ness to the massacre,

Do you know what provoked the Japanese to commit this
atrocity?
No.

Have you anything further to add to this statement?
No.

5%5 Sfﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂg %ﬁrzigg
RZANO

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES

)

)
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS g 8°

)

TOWN OF SAN JOSE

I, SATURNINO LORZANO, being duly sworn on oath, state
that i have read and understood the foregoing transcrip-
‘tion of my -dnterrogation and all answers contained therein,
consisting of two %2) pages, are true to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

aturnin TZan
t SATURNINO LORZANO

Subscribed and sworn to before me this lst day of Nov-
ember, 1945,

/8/ All eoples
t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Cap., CAC
Investigating Ofricer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

CERIIEICAIE

We, ALLEN H, PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES
C. THOMPSON, Capt., 01000484, TC, certify that on 6th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us SATURNINO LORZA-
NO, and gave the foregoing answers to the several questions
set forth; that after his testimony had been transcribed, the
sald SATUﬁNINO LORZANO read the same and affixed his signature
thereto in our presence.

Municipal Bldg., San Jose, §s§ Allen H, Peoples
Batangas Province, P, I. t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES,Capt.,
CAC

1lst November, 1945, s/ Charles C., Thomps
fTé'cnanﬁEs d, ¥H0MP§0%T

Capt., TC
A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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EGMIDIO PAIMES, after having been duly sworn, testified

at the Municipal Building of San Jose, Batangas Province,
P. I., on 6 October 1945, as follows!

Q
A

Please state your full name, age, address and national-
ity.

Bgnidio Palmes, 45 years 0ld, Barrio Banaybanay II, San
Jose, Batangas Province, P. I., Filipino.

¥hat is your occupation?
Farmer.

Do you intend to remain at your present addrees, and if
not, how can your whereabouts in the future be ascer-
tained?

I intend to remain at my present address.

Did you suffer any mistreatment at the hande of the Jap-
anese?

Ho. However, it was sheer luck that I was not killed
by them.

Please relate fully what happened.

It was on March 26, 1945, about three o'clock in the af-
ternoon, when Marceliano Ona, age 24, Mariano Ona, age
27 and I, all from the barrio of Banaybanay II, San Jose,
Batangas Province, went along the National Boad to give
some bananae to the Americans. However, we could not
see any Americans around:

VWe three went to the house of Miguel Macalinga along the
National Eoad in Barrio Banaybenay II, to reet and wait
for the Americans there. We had barely entered the gate
wvhen we heard the door downstairs open, followed by some
Japanese words which we did not understand but whose i
port we could not mistake.

We all turned and fled. I heard shots. I managed to
escape unscathed. Next day, March 27, 1946, I found
the body of Marceliano Ona about ten meters from the
house. He was shot on the back which went through the
chest. I found the body of Mariano Ona four daye later
about seven meters from the house.

Do you know the names of any of these Japanese who shot
your two companions?

No, I did not see them. When I heard the door open, I
did not look at it anymore, I just ran as fast as my

lege could carry me.

Do you know what unit or organization they belonged to?
No. As I said before I did not see those Japanese. I
am sure that they were Japanese because I heard Japenese
words being spoken behind the door and the shots ceme
from the direction of the door downstaits.

Have you anything else to add to your statement?
¥o.

[#/ Begmidio Palmes
/t] EGHIDIO PAIMES

USA. vs Tomeyuki YAMASHITA
Prosecution
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I, BGMIDIO PAIMES, bPeing duly sworn on oath, state
that I had read to me and understood the translation of the
foregoing transcription of my interrogation and all answers
contained therein, consisting of one (1) page, are true to
the best of my knowledge and belief.

[s/ dio Palmes
/%] BGMIDIO PALMES

Bubscribed and sworn to bdefore me this 3] day of Oct-
ober, 1945.

/s8] Allen E. Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt,, CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.

COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PROVINCE OF BATANGAS 88
TOWN OF SAN JOSE )

I, ALYREDO CUEVAS, residing at 1369 Antipolo Btreet,
Sampaloc, Manila, P. I., being duly sworn on oath, state that
I truly translated the questions and answers given from Eng-
14sh to Tagalog and from Tagalog to Emglish respectively,
and that after being transcribed, I truly translated the
foregoing deposition containing qne (1) page, to the witness;
that the witness thereupon in my presence affixed his signa~
ture thereto.

/8] Alfredo Cuevas
/t/ ALYREDO CUEVAS

Subscribed and sworam to before me this 3] day of Oct-
ober, 1946.

/8] Allen H. Peoples

/t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt. CAC
Investigating Officer, War Crimes
Investigating Detachment.
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CERIIZIICAZE

We, ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., 0249524, CAC, and CHARLES
C. THOMPSON, Capt. 01000484, TC, certify that on 6th day of
October, 1945, personally appeared before us EGMIDIO PALMES,
and according to ALFREDO CUEVAS, gave the foregoing answers
to“the several questions set forth therein; that after his
testimony had been transcribed, the said EGMIDIO PAIMES had
read to him by the said interpreter the same and affixed his
signature thereto in our presence.

/8] Allen H. Peoples
Municipal Bldg., San Jose, /t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., OAC
Batangas Province, P.I.

;:; Charles g Thompeon

21 October, 1946.

A CERTIFIED TRUE COPY:
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List of dead of Filipino Civilans killed by Jap-
anese - January, February and March, 1946 - Municipality
of San Jose, Province of Batangas, P. I.

CERTIFICAZIE

We certify that the following Exhibit is a true
liet of victime, killed by the Japanese in San Jose,
Batangas, P. I., during Jamuary, February and March,
1945; that this list wase obtained from the official
1ist of victims prepared by the Municipal Mayor of San

Jose.

/8] Charles C. Thompson
/4] CHARLES C. THOMPSON, Capt., TC

s/ Allen H. Peoples
t/ ALLEN H. PEOPLES, Capt., CAC

T el
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Yenancio Remo
Vicente Frandi
Jose Talag
Lorenzo Maralit
Vicéorino Pae:z
Sancho Atienza
Agapita Hidalgo
Sixto Atienza
Incita Atienza
Bulogio Atienza
Pedro Atienza
Leonarda Atienza
Marcelino Atienza
Dionisia Atiensza
Locita de Silva
Bregida de Silva
Boman Umali
Florentino Umali
Dioedado Aquino
Toridbio Vale
Nicolas Laroza
Pascual Magnaye
Tomas Hernandez
Delfin Ona
Cerelino Macalinao
Teodoro Macalinao
Anselmo Alabastro
Butequio Alabastro
Yelipe Alsbastro
Paulino Villameva
Valariano Malata
Teoderico Hernandez
Galicano Hocbo
Filomeno Bemo
Boman Remo

Incio Quizon
Vicente Quizon
Gerado Limbo

Jose Mendoze
Adriano Guce
Antonio Guce
Filipe Villanueva
Miguel Ilagan
Teofilo Ilagen
Martin Pasia
Alfredo Suarez
Marciano Ona
Marcelino Ona
Leocadio Mercado
Boeario Aguila
Genoveva Custodio
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COMMONWEALTH OF THE PHILIPPINES

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JOSE

BATANGAS

JAPANESE ATROCITIES, SAN JOSE, BATANGAS
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Poblacion
Poblacion
Poblacion
Poblacion
Poblacion
Tayean
Taysan
Taysan
Taysan
Taysan
Taysan
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Qccupation = Date

AttyéMun Mayor
Parish Priest
Clk of Court
Doctor
Laborer
Farmer
Housekeeper
Laborer
Housekeeper
Laborer
None
Housekeeper
None

None

Hone

None

Prop.
Student
Drafteman
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer
lLaborer
Laborer
Merchant
Merchant
Merchant
Farmer
Farmer
Yarmer
Merchant
Farmezr
None
Laborer
Laborer
Laborer
Hone
Laborer
Hone
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer

Student
Yarmer
Farmer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper

Jan.
Jan.
Jan.
Feb.
Yeb.
Feb.

Feb.

¥eb.

27 145
27 145
27 145
28 145
22,145
22 '45

14 '45

14 45




Nicomedes Ona
Incinda Ona
Encarnacion Ona
Maria Ona

Bufemia Ona

Jose Ona

Librada Ona
Rogelio Ona
Nelia Lursano
Imie Moog
Dorotea de Moog
Hogina Ona
Conchita Atienza
Jose Marasigan
Concepcion Atienza
Anado Lasin
VYensislao Mayo
Genaro Bodrigue:
Francisco Hodrigues
Angel Eemo

Andres Pena
Andres Matibag
Troctoso Hodrigue:z
Pedro Atienza
Julian Iuna
Vionisio Atienza
Apolonio Carandang
Anaceto Carandang
Pedro Carandang
Fructoso Ouce
Leopoldo Mendoza
Inocensio Laroza
Victorio Ada
Crespin Macasaet
Estanislao Guce
Lauro Pentoy
Simeon Briones
Arcadio Briones
Oerelino Sarmiento
Esteban Perada
Hilarion Magracia
Melicio Patron
Regalado Ilao
Ceriaco Minavedes
Buby Minavedes
Bofino Manalo
Flora Gonzales
Manuela Minas
Marcelo Caguimbal
Maria Morundan
Lino Mendoza
Aniano Morales
Moises Carandang
Vicente de Castro
Alfredo Flores
Miguel Dimaano
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Luanil

Iunil
Balagtasin
Balagtasin
Balagtasin
Balagtesin
Balagtasin
Pilagtungulan
Plagtungulan
Plagtungulan
Piagtungulan
Piegtungulan
Plagtungulan
Plagtungulan
Pilagtungulan
Piagtungulan
Galamay-Amo
Sabang
Sabang
Sabang
Sabang

Tayean
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Ogcupation

Prop.
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Merchant
¥one

None

None

None

Yarmer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
None
Housekeeper
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer
Tarmer

R.B. Epgnr
Yarmer
Yarmer
Laborer
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer
Yarmer
Farmer
Earmer
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer

Laborer
Hone

Hone
Laborer
Housekeeper
Housekeeper
Laborer
Housekeeper
Farmer
Yarmer
Yarmer
Farmer
Farmer
Farmer






